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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEREPXKEB

TREASURER’S REPORT

AEHRE

1.

Overview

In celebration of the University’s 55th anniversary, |
am pleased to report that the financial year 2018/19
marked the conclusion of the current triennium
2016-2019 with a consolidated surplus of $1.04
billion and consolidated net assets of $22.68 billion.
The University will leverage on its financial strength
to face the challenges in the next triennium 2019-
2022 and to remain at the forefront of institutions
of higher learning.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements report the income and
expenditure for both recurrent and non-recurrent
activities funded by the government or supported by
other non-government funds. The tables and charts
on pages 6 to 8 provide additional information and
analyses of the financial results of the University by
sources of funding and their attribution to different
categories of activities. Comments and highlights
below only refer to the operating results of the
University.

Operating Results and Financial Position

Income

Total income rose by $90 million or 0.9% to $9,624
millionin 2018/19. Government subventions accounted
for $5,121 million and recorded an increase of $194
million compared to the previous financial year, mainly
due to additional allocations to block grants and
supplementary grants to support increase in student
numbers, inflation and upward pay adjustments for
April 2018 and April 2019. Tuition, programme and
other fees increased by $185 million to $2,305 million,
of which 54% was contributed by non-UGC (University
Grants Committee) funded programmes. Fees income
from non-UGC funded programmes slightly exceeded
that from the UGC funded programmes, due to self-
financing tuition fees being charged for the former in
the absence of direct subsidies from the government.
The interest and net investment income fell by $364
million or 43.5% to $474 million arising from the tariff
negotiations between China and the United States
as well as the uncertainty in Brexit, despite an overall
increase in interestincome and dividends. In view of the
impending launch of the Eighth UGC Matching Grant
Scheme with effect from 1 July 2019, the donations and
benefactions income only grew slightly by $33 million
or 4.5% to $764 million, mainly for research activities
and the private hospital construction.
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Expenditure

Total expenditure increased by $616 million or 7.8%
to $8,530 million, attributable mainly to the upward
revision of pay adjustment and the planned increase
in learning, research and support services, as well
as for capacity building.

Expenditure on learning and research amounted to
$6,767 million and accounted for almost 80% of total
expenditure, reaffirming the University’s continuous
advancement in teaching, learning and research. On
the other hand, expenditure on institutional support,
including premises and related expenses, student and
general education services, and management and
general, was kept steady at about 20%.

Operating Results

The University achieved a total comprehensive
income of $1,092 million for the year, comprising
deficits of $153 million and $31 million in recurrent
government funds and UGC matching grants fund,
respectively, and a surplus of $1,276 million in non-
government funds.

Financial Position

The University’s net assets increased by $1,100
million or 5.5% to $21.17 billion as at 30 June 2019.
Total investments dropped slightly by $38 million or
0.4% to $8,653 million due to the combined effect
of the maturity of HKD and RMB bonds, injection
of new funds to investment portfolios managed by
external investment managers together with the
revaluation gain for the year. The cash and short-
term deposits increased significantly by $2,582
million or 26.1% to $12,492 million, mainly due to
the one-off allocation of $1,202 million from the UGC
for six hostel development projects.

The net book value of fixed assets reached $6,015
million as at 30 June 2019, a slight decrease of
$88 million or 1.4%. For assets acquired by funds
from the government or government agencies
with conditions attached, the balances of their
aggregate net book value were treated as deferred
capital funds. The balance in deferred capital funds
decreased by $57 million or 1.6% to $3,551 million
as at 30 June 2019.
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Taking into account the operating results achieved
for the financial year 2018/19, the General and
Development Reserve Fund dropped slightly to
$2.43 billion, the UGC matching grants fund was
maintained at $1.41 billion, and the total restricted
funds grew to $17.33 billion, with an aggregate total
of $21.17 billion to support the University’s long-
range development in meeting its strategic goals
and missions.

Research Activities

In addition to recurrent grants from the UGC
covering basic infrastructure to carry out research
activities and to fund a certain level of research,
the University had also secured substantial funding
through different sources to support specific
research projects. In the financial year 2018/19, a
total of $265 million was recognized as designated
income for research from grants from the UGC and
its Research Grants Council. Another $647 million
came from the private sector and other sources in
the form of sponsorships or donations.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions increased by $33 mil-
lion or 4.5% to $764 million in the financial year
2018/19. The University is most grateful to the alum-
ni, donors, sponsors and friends of the University
for their generous financial support for its academic
development, research activities, scholarships and
capital development programmes.

In addition to the contribution of $192.1 million in
2017/18, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
donated another $318.3 million in the financial year
2018/19 to support the development of the private
hospital, education programmes and other activi-
ties. The University is again most appreciative of
the continuous support from the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust.

Capital Developments

Acquisitions amounting to $399 million were made
for fixed assets during the financial year, with $287
million spent on equipment, furniture and fittings
for the purposes of teaching, research and student
development, $91 million on construction of the
Jockey Club Postgraduate Halls 2 and 3 and Student
Amenity Centre in Area 39, and $21 million on other

premises and related development projects.

BEZF— /N BFEENEERR - —RAER
RFESEN FTRE—TNE=TERT - HEBHHHE
BEERTHR—TERAEREELAZE—B T
=R=FTEr BERHEE"F—t+-—RBtTERT-
ARZPBIABHRERRE - ENSIEREEENES -

W5 EE

ABREARNESEE MR (TERA SR M
REDMERI - TRSHEREEIBHTEMRIE
B - RBEZF—/\/-NLHHFE  ER/YESN
HETHREMSEBRIEEHRAENERLZRE
NTHEET B KEUAANEMRIEESEEH]
AENTEtEETHAREE -

R R R

ZF-N\/— N BREERBRERENBREFNIL
AEN=F=88nag8a0NHaELt/AATHE
B AEBLARYFEMORER - BHA - BB
A UBREHRYE - BH—EXHASBMER -
FiEE - RBEFEINEZRRIER -

BEEEREEEERERE T —t/— \URFER
B—BATZE—1t8x  BR=F—/\/—hAHBE
ERE=R—TN\E=1TEBRTFTAZREEEZLRE
e~ ERBEIEE NEMES - AEELBRZHE
BERGEEERESNRMSS -

BERR

ARBEZF—\/-NHBRFEREEEEEHX=FN
FhEEx HPZRN\TLEETRRAE « i3
BERRLENE AT -EETARERGR=
THAENBESEMREBS —EA=EMBERED
i FETT—ERTAREMEFLARERIER -



UGC had approved and allocated the Hostel De-
velopment Fund of $1,202 million to the University
to construct six blocks of student hostel to provide
1,794 hostel places by mid-2027, with the 300-place
student hostel on New Asia campus to be first
completed in June 2023. Under the coordination
of the Food and Health Bureau, the planning and
preliminary design of a new teaching and research
complex in Area 39, and the development of CUHK
facilities in the redevelopment of Prince of Wales

Hospital are in good progress.

Self-financed Programmes

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core func-
tions of the University. As a public institution and in
fulfilment of its role, the University provides learn-
ing opportunities at sub-degree and postgraduate
levels, as well as lifelong learning programmes, to
complement the UGC-funded academic activities.
The main purpose of the University’s self-financed
programmes is to meet community and societal
needs. With increases in both student number and
tuition fees in some programmes together with the
introduction of new master programmes, the rev-
enue from non-UGC funded programmes recorded
an increase of 12.8% to $1,233 million in the year.

The Way Forward

Pursuant to the government’s commitment to
promoting innovation and technology development,
over $100 billion was earmarked in the 2019-
20 government budget. Given the University’s
research strengths in biotechnology, artificial
intelligence, smart city and Fintech, the University
is in an excellent position to partake, inter alia,
in two innovative clusters in the Science Park,
namely, Health@InnoHK focusing on healthcare
technologies and AIR@InnoHK focusing on
artificial intelligence and robotics technologies,
in collaboration with leading universities and the
industries to achieve innovative research targeting
for unprecedented societal impact. The University
also treasures the funding opportunities available
from the government for refurbishing the University
campus, enhancing teaching and research facilities,
supporting public healthcare and sustaining
research and development. The University will spare
no effort in achieving excellence and innovation in
education and research.
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The University welcomes the launch of the Eighth
Matching Grant Scheme for 10 publicly funded post-
secondary education institutions with effect from 1
July 2019. With the staunch and generous support of
our benefactors, | am pleased to announce that the
University has already reached the Matching Grant
ceiling of $600 million. The donations will go a long
way to augment the University’s strategic initiatives
and development.

As it takes stock of its achievements, the University
owes its success to a team of dedicated staff with
positive attitude, and to the perseverance and loyalty
of students and alumni. In entering a new triennium
which is full of challenges and opportunities, | call
on all members of the University to unite to achieve
ever more ambitious goals in academic excellence
with impact on the community.

Anthony Neoh
Treasurer
29 October 2019
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE
FINANICAL HIGHLIGHTS 2018-2019

Bt 7% 1§ = 2018-2019 (The University X E8)

Total Z8%8 $9,624 milion BE&JT

Government Subventions
BT &R
($5,121million B&Jt)
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
BE . RERHMKE
($2,305 million B&Jt)
Interest and Net Investment Income
MEREEFWE
53.2% ($474 million HET)
N ) ) Donations and Benefactions
B RIBM
($764 million B&E Jt)
B Ancillary Services Income
BRI A
($344 million HET)
m Other Income
Hug A
($616 million B&T)

Expenditure X

Total #2%8 $8,530 milion BETT

" Instruction and Research
HERIFRE
($6,144 million BET)
w Library
EES-H
($280 million BET)
Central Computing Facilities
R B R I
($188 million E&Jt)
Other Academic Services
HHE RS
($155 million B&Jt)
m Management and General
EER-RBIE
| ($343 million BEJt)
7.0% 4.0% Premises and Related Expenses
BFEREEXH
($791 million E&Jt)
m Student and General Education Services
BER-BRBBEEH
($600 million B&Jt)
m Other Activities
HthE®
($29 million BET)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EEPXKE

FINANICAL HIGHLIGHTS 2018-2019

81 7% #§ 2 2018-2019 (The University X E)

Income Analysis Y{A 21

Year Ended 30 June 7xB=-1H(&F#)

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)

Government Subventions BIFF &) 5121 53.2% 4,927 51.7%
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees & - (212 N E M E 2,305 24.0% 2,120 22.2%
Interest and Net Investment Income | 2 &% & iF &S 474 4.9% 838 8.8%
Donations and Benefactions 18iZ XI5 764 7.9% 731 7.7%
Ancillary Services Income HBNARFSUIA 344 3.6% 310 3.2%
Other Income E T A 616 6.4% 608 6.4%
Total ($ million) 4828 (B&7T) 9,624 100.0% 9,534  100.0%

Expenditure Analysis % H 231

Year Ended 30 June 7xB=+1H(&F4#)

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)

Instruction and Research #[&2 K fff3¢ 6,144 72.0% 5,764 72.8%
Library EIEEE 280 3.3% 256 3.2%
Central Computing Facilities B REEf&:%}E 188 2.2% 159 2.0%
Other Academic Services EfthZE2ARFS 155 1.8% 147 1.9%
Management and General &2 N—HZEIE 343 4.0% 359 4.5%
Premises and Related Expenses #EF NEEZ T 791 9.3% 723 9.1%
Student and General Education Services B4 N —Ri BB E 600 7.0% 479 6.1%
Other Activities ELfthZEEF5 29 0.4% 27 0.4%
Total ($ million) 4838 (B T) 8,530  100.0% 7,914  100.0%

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the following funding sources *

AFEETHNDEREER TIEE *

Year Ended 30 June 7xB=-1H(&F#)

(HK$’M) (%)  (HK$'M) (%)
General and Development Reserve Fund — i3 & R#HES (244) -22.3% (62) -3.8%
Matching Grants Fund FEg¥if#BhE (31) -2.8% 16 1.0%
Non-Government Funds JEBfTES 1,367 125.1% 1,668 102.8%
University Development KXE &R 750 68.7% 1,140 70.3%
General Academic Use —fiZZ#E2 A& 327 30.0% 64 3.9%
Research Activities f5T;EE) 170 15.5% 278 17.1%
Other Activities EthEEFS 125 11.4% (72) -4.4%
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 128 %&, 8 NEESE 12 1.1% 35 2.1%
New Colleges $TEP% (1) -0.1% 22 1.4%
Capital Projects E2IEH (16) -1.5% 201 12.4%
Total ($ million) 4238 (EHE&T) 1,092 100.0% 1,622  100.0%

* after inter-fund transfer TEESREIRZ
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE
FINANICAL HIGHLIGHTS 2018-2019

Bf 75 #§ Z 2018-2019 (The University X )

Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
REZB-AFERZTB—NERA=1H - KENHFERRDITOT:
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars &S HETIITR)

EENBFENE

Recurrent Government Funds . Non-Recurrent Government Funds

FREMRTEDE

Non-Government Funds
O smmase

HKS'M B EET

9,000 T
8,000 T 3,259 3,381
7,000 T
6,000 T
5,000 T
4,000 T
3,000 T
2,000 T

1,000 T

1,981

1,820

1278 1,561

16
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Income YgA
2019 2018 2019

Expenditure % #

Gh B
(153)

Expenditure Surplus / (Deficit) Surplus & &k
2018 B (F518) 2018
2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXARBRER

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“the University”), the Trustees
of the four separately established constituent Colleges, namely
The Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New Asia
College, The Trustees of United College and The Trustees of
Shaw College, and CUHK Health Limited, CUHK Medical Centre
Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Charitable Foundation Limited
and CUHK Medical Clinic Limited (collectively “the Group”) set
out on pages 12 to 119, which comprise the Consolidated and
University Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019,
the Consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the Consolidated and University
Statements of Changes in Funds and the Consolidated and
University Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
University as at 30 June 2019 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the financial report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Council for the consolidated
financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for
such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
its responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This reportis made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the Group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

29 October 2019

HEERMEHRSMBERRENET (8)

- HREIRARECESHERNGERELLR - RIBME
DMERER  BERSFEHSENEREMNEATEE
M MU RESHHABERNSRCERENELSERER -
MRHEMBREFEEATEREN - WELEERHERE DR
FEAFIREAUBRR]PHERIKE - BERRENKET
B ARMARERRFRRBSR - HMANERIENRZEED
R HIEFRERSRUEETRGE © AT - ARBERF R TEEE
AREBEETRERELE -

- ESSMBERRNERNERSX  BENAE  SERE - U
iR EHMBRREEPERRRBER -

T MABEEAESENREEENUBERERRR  @ENER
B UEHGREUBRRERER - HMAEAERESEHN
7~ BEMT - RPSEAERAEZNEE -

FREMEBIES - MMEBHEEGBEE T FIEIMEFEE - R
ZHF - ERER RIS - SERMESEEPE L ASERINE
FEIE AR

BMEREFEESRIEH  HARMEHESERBIIMAHE
FHEEERER  LHEMMBEEURSEMNEASTETEM
BIMHFMERERNEMEE  UMREERANERT - 8N
EEYEN -

R E
HEREETRD
HEPIRIEITIE 1058
AFARESE
—F-hAEtTA=TAH



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXKXE

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

EEKZER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

BE_S-hFAA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E#T5T57R)

The Group The University
Note REERE RE2
PisE 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Note Bizt) (Note Hizk)
Income KA
Government Subventions BRFERN 4 5,121,182 4,927,153 5,121,182 4,927,153
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees EE . RELHMKE 5 2,307,218 2,122,900 2,304,508 2,119,793
Interest and Net Investment Income FIE ML E RS 6 535,974 903,308 473,937 838,093
Donations and Benefactions =R 7 789,344 774,371 763,931 731,379
Ancillary Services Income EHENARFEURA 8 351,212 316,633 344,409 310,102
Other Income HARA 9 621,960 609,833 615,864 607,379
9,726,890 9,654,198 9,623,831 9,533,899
Expenditure X 10
Learning and Research By iR
Instruction and Research BB 6,145,882 5,767,381 6,144,108 5,764,418
Library EESE 280,264 255,852 280,264 255,852
Central Computing Facilities PR E R bt 187,613 159,225 187,612 159,221
Other Academic Services HAith RS 191,625 165,930 155,263 146,717
Institutional Support REBHBNERTS
Management and General S —RLEEIE 398,243 389,021 342,861 359,173
Premises and Related Expenses BFEREEZE 797,191 740,067 790,978 722,359
Student and General Education Services BER—RBEEH 654,395 533,152 599,749 479,347
Other Activities HthZE75 31,566 30,194 28824 __27.312
8,686,779 8,040,822 8,529,659 7,914,399
Surplus for the year AEERSR 1,040,111 1,613,376 1,094,172 1,619,500
Item that will not be classified to TEENFEERRAB
surplus or deficit ErIER
Remeasurement of Defined EFtERTHZEE 18.1(v) (1,719) 2,046 (1,719) 2,046
Benefit Scheme
Items that may be reclassified HE@oSHoEERENS
subsequently to surplus or deficit SEEEZIER
Changes in Fair Value of Equity ERH MR EIES (11,730) - - )
Investments Measured at FVOCI WARESTSERA
mEEAREEEE
Changes in Fair Value of At ERIRE R - 234 - B
Available-for-Sale Investments REBEEE
Release of Revaluation Reserve upon FHH E T AR AN s % - 160 - -
Disposal of Available-for-sale RAEEZEENT
Investments LEh A=A
Total comprehensive income for the year R&EE2EINSHEE 1,026,662 1,615,816 1,092,453 1,621,546




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EREPXXE

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE (Contin

2EB=E (8)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

BE—F-hFAASTHLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#TT5I7R)

The Group The University
Note REERE KRE
s 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Note pizE) (Note BizE)
Attributable to: ERER:
(Deficit)/Surplus of Recurrent Government A& MBI ENE 12 (152,668) 42,793  (152,668) 42,793
Funds transferred to General and (E518)/ REAEEE—H
Development Reserve Fund NEBEREREEE
(Deficit)/Surplus of Non-recurrent Government FFAEE BT & B 12 (31,288) 16,147 (31,288) 16,147
Funds transferred from University Grants (E518)/ B RRE
Committee (“UGC”) Matching Grants Fund ~ BEH#HENIE
Surplus of Non-government Funds FHATERNERER 11 1,210,618 1,556,876 1,276,409 1,562,606

transferred to Restricted Funds BEERESE

1,026,662 1,615,816

1,092,453 1,621,546

Note: The Group and the University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

Mizt: ARBEREABRIS-N\FtA—BVSERA (FEMBREED) FRNE15% - RBFMEENEESE

LEEBERIARKES - RHIEE2.3 -

The notes set out on pages 20 to 119 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERE-TEE—B—ThEZKMERTHBRRZ—EMT -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXKXE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BT
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

—2-h&EAXA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ#8TFT5I7R)

The Group The University
Note REEERE RE
PfEE 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Note BzE) (Note P3E)
Non-Current Assets JERENEE
Investments in Subsidiaries RHBASIHIRE 13 - - 611,257 610,257
Fixed Assets BEHE 15 8,947,194 7,130,616 6,014,823 6,102,886
Intangible Assets mECEE 16 17,394 - - -
Investments BE 17 5,512,014 5,695,225 5,178,059 5,167,927
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EBERKRENEE 18 8,029 9,519 8,029 9,519
Prepayments and Other Receivables FETFUE R ELMEYER 20 197,762 130,807 53,490 53,490
14,682,393 12,966,167 11,865,658 11,944,079
Current Assets e E
Investments wE 17 | 4,021,307 || 3,901,904 || 3,474,783 |[ 3,522,608
Inventories e 1,301 490 - -
Staff Loans BEEER 28 230,840 212,500 230,840 212,500
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEUERSR ~ TEfTEER 20 | 1,268,715 892,981 | 1,255,015 897,272
Other Receivables HAthFEUTR
Contract Assets BHEE 19 28,975 - 28,975 -
Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks ~ IRERR{TEHER 21 (15,283,476 || 14,288,653 | (12,492,459 ([ 9,910,605
Current Liabilities ———— 20,834,614 19,296,528 17,482,072 14,542,985
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTERRNERTER 22 978,068 | 1,291,485 813,659 1,321,964
Contract Liabilities BNEE 19 531,140 - 531,140 -
Provision for Employee Benefits B S 17 £ 23 670,712 532,585 665,031 528,237
Loans and Borrowings (EEN 24 204,000 75,000 204,000 75,000
Deferred Income IEFEY 2 25 668,335 392,253 667,876 391,619
3,052,255 2,291,323 _ 2,881,706 _ 2,316,820
Net Current Assets RENEERE 17,782,359 17,005,205 14,600,366 12,226,165
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HREERTHAE 32,464,752 29,971,372 26,466,024 24,170,244
Non-Current Liabilities EREBERE
Accounts Payable and Accruals ETERFANESTER 22 202,239 82,730 - -
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF %R 23 240,604 247,600 234,664 244,960
Loans and Borrowings BN 24| 3,699,287|| 3,562,976 12,000 16,000
Deferred Income IEFEY 2 25| 2,089,842 823,023 || 1,496,287 229,739
6,231,972 4,716,329 1,742,951 490,699
Deferred Capital Funds BEEERE 26 3,551,347 3,607,593 3,551,347 3,607,593
NET ASSETS BEFE 22,681,433 21,647,450

21,171,726

20,071,952




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEPXKXKE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
MERinK (&)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019
—E-hEFXA=1+H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E#TF7T5I7R)
The Group The University
Note REER RE
FsE 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Note Hizt) (Note HizE)
Restricted Funds HHES 11 18,842,808 17,533,633 17,333,101 15,958,135
UGC Funds HEFES 12 3,838,625 4,113,817 3,838,625 4,113,817

TOTAL FUNDS BExiEE 22,681,433 21,647,450 21,171,726 20,071,952

Note: The Group and the University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

MizE: ABEERABRIFT-N\FLtA—BVSRER (FEMBREER) FAREE 16 - RBFMEENBETIE
LEEERARWES - RHIFE23 -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 29 October 2019
RESR-"FT-—NF+HAZ+h BERSRERILATREK

A0 Gl

Norman N. P. Leung Z273HE Rocky S. Tuan E35&
Chairman of the Council IREZEE Vice-Chancellor and President {2 &

Jasiantens

Anthony Neoh ZE3[ Salome Y. P. Lam T 83
Treasurer S]& Bursar and Director of Finance Ef#3 &

The notes set out on pages 20 to 119 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE—+TEE—B—TNEZKFEREMBRKRZ G -




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPXKE
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

B8R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

HE—S-hFRA=THILEFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAE#FTHIR)

The Group

REBERE
UGC Funds  Restricted Funds Total
BESES SEHEE Funds

(Note Bfis¥ 12)  (Note BfizE 11) HEEEE

Balance - 1 July 2017 —E—-tFtHA—-BHER 4,159,544 15,872,090 20,031,634

Transfers from the Statement of EEAS S 58,940 1,556,876 1,615,816
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer EEEZER (104,667) 104,667 -

Balance - 30 June 2018 (Note) —E-NEAA=1+HER 4,113,817 17,533,633 21,647,450

(HizE)

Impact on initial application BRSBTS SR - 7,321 7,321
of HKFRS 9 FORNTE

Adjusted balance - 1 July 2018 —E-NEtRA—\AREEE 4,113,817 17,540,954 21,654,771

Transfers (to)/from the Statement of B(E) /B2miER (183,956) 1,210,618 1,026,662
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer BEERBZER (91,236) 91,236 -

Balance - 30 June 2019 —E-hEFABA=1TBHEER 3,838,625 18,842,808 22,681,433

Note: The Group and the University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

fizE: ABEERABRIS—N\FLtE—RVLER (SEMEIREEN) FoRNE 1515 - IRIBFBRENBIESE -
LEERERIRIRES - RFiEE2.3

The notes set out on pages 20 to 119 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SERE-TEE—B—TIEZMERTHBRIRZ—ERMI -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUNDS (Continued)

BEZEHR (8
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

BE_S-hFAA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAE#FTHIR)

The University

RE
UGC Funds  Restricted Funds Total
HESES HHESE Funds

(Note MizE 12)  (Note BftzE 11) HEEHE

Balance - 1 July 2017 —E-tFtHA—-BHER 4,159,544 14,290,862 18,450,406

Transfers from the Statement of BEHZEKRR 58,940 1,562,606 1,621,546
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer EEHEZER (104,667) 104,667 -

Balance - 30 June 2018 (Note) —E-N\FARA=1+TH&EER 4,113,817 15,958,135 20,071,952

(BisE)

Impact on initial application BRSBTS - 7,321 7,321
of HKFRS 9 FEIRNEE

Adjusted balance - 1 July 2018 —E-NFLtRA—BAARES 4,113,817 15,965,456 20,079,273

Transfers (to)/from the Statement of B(E)/82ERRE (183,956) 1,276,409 1,092,453
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer EEREER (91,236) 91,236 -

Balance - 30 June 2019 —E-hFABETHER 3,838,625 17,333,101 21,171,726

Note: The Group and the University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

MizE: ARBEENABRIFT-N\FtA—HVSERA (FEMBREEN) FRNE151% - IRIBFMEEMNEESE
LEEERAWET - RHIEE23 ©

The notes set out on pages 20 to 119 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE—+TEE—B—TITEZKEREUBERRZ D -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

HE—S-hFAA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ#8TFT5I7R)

The Group The University
REBER K&
Note
Pz 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Note Hizk) (Note Hizt)
Operating Activities REES
Surplus for the Year RNEERER 1,040,111 1,613,376 1,094,172 1,619,500
Adjustments for: FRIEE -
Depreciation e 10 487,287 485,954 483,849 482,983
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEEEEERE/ (1) 3,404 (39) 3,404 (39)
Interest and Net Investment Income EISYS Ea=pe e 6 (535,974) (903,308) (473,937) (838,093)
Operating Surplus before Changes in S EETEHNCERN 994,828 1,195,983 1,107,488 1,264,351
Working Capital
Increase in Employee Retirement Benefit ESRMETIEEIEM (229) (61) (229) (61)
Assets
Increase in Accounts Receivable, FEUTER TR ~ FRITFRIE A ELAth (317,008) (249,789) (261,237) (219,087)
Prepayments and Other Receivables FEWTRRZ BN
Decrease in Contract Assets BHEEZHD 11,287 - 11,287 -
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories FEZ(Em)/FE (811) 19 - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable FEMTERFR N FER & 238N 295,357 240,955 (19,040) 94,008
and Accruals /(RE)
Increase in Contract Liabilities BRR/EZIEN 41,875 - 41,875 -
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits &S {8F#fmZi&in 131,131 86,991 126,498 84,353
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income BTN 821800/ (RA) 1,542,901 (190,164) 1,542,805 (189,831)
Net Cash Generated from Operating RETEEMEERAEEE 2,699,331 1,083,934 2,549,447 1,033,733
Activities
Investing Activities REEE
Increase in Time Deposits with FAERER =18 AMEH (121,088) (2,763,583) (2,401,288) (806,756)
Original Maturity over Three Months ERZIgm
Payment for Capital Expenditure =N AR (2,249,997) (1,381,127) (399,271) (806,157)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBTEEERESMIE 81 645 81 645
Payment for Purchase of Investments ARG (725,443) (998,434) (636,347) (851,469)
Payment for Investment in a Subsidiary BERKBAS - - (1,000) -
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREREMIE 876,964 666,922 786,968 634,083
Dividend Received ElRE 43,398 64427 19,142 36,310
Interest Received TUFIE 300,772 319,912 212,420 265,797
Loans Granted to Staff HESES (64,630) (37,520) (64,630) (37,520)
Loans Repaid by Staff B BRI 46,290 33,176 46,290 33,176
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BEEHEHEESEE (1,893,653) (4,095,582) (2,437,635) (1,531,891)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEREPXKE

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Continued)
RERER (1)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
BE-FT-NFAAZTHLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (M#&#F7T5ImR)

The Group The University
Note REEE RE
FfEE 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Note Hizt) (Note Pitsx)
Financing Activities REEE
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Capital Funds iBEEEEESZ(R)/1EM (56,246) 188,612 (56,246) 188,612
Proceeds from Loans and Borrowings BB EIE - 2,218,000 - -
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff PR S ZRTER 200,000 7,000 200,000 7,000
Repayment of Secured Loans EEEIEPER (4,000) (6,274) (4,000) (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EEEETHREZRT (71,000) (5,000)  (71,000) (5,000)
to Staff =6
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities Bi&;ZEFiEY 2B BE 68,754 2,402,338 68,754 184,338
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash RERASSEYZFEM 874,432 (609,310) 180,566 (313,820)
Equivalents /GR)
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERRSSEY - FUER 339,950 949,260 271,397 585,217

- Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERRESEY - FRER 21 1,214,382 339,950 451,963 271,397

Note: The Group and the University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

MizE: ARBEELABRIF-N\FLA—BVSERA (FRHBREEN) FMRNE15% - RBFMEENEESE
LEEERARWET - RHfFE2.3 -

The notes set out on pages 20 to 119 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE-—TEE-—B—TIEZMEBRHBRKRZ—ERMI -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEREPXKE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATSERRMIEE

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong which includes Morningside College,
S.H. Ho College, C.W. Chu College, Wu Yee Sun
College, and Lee Woo Sing College (collectively
“the University”), the Trustees of the four separately
established constituent Colleges, namely The
Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New
Asia College, The Trustees of United College and
The Trustees of Shaw College, and CUHK Health
Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Limited, CUHK
Medical Centre Charitable Foundation Limited
and CUHK Medical Clinic Limited (collectively “the
Group”). The Trustees of these constituent Colleges
were incorporated under The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (“the Ordinance”). As these
constituent Colleges function to complement the
University in the provision of a balanced, holistic
education which also embodies different intellectual
and cultural traditions, management of the University
is of the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic
and related objectives, consistent with those of
the University. Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements, the consolidated financial statements
of the University include the financial results and
assets and liabilities relating to the Trustees of the
four separately established constituent Colleges.
The aggregate surplus for the year ended 30 June
2019 of the Trustees of these four separately
established constituent Colleges amounted to $6
million (2018: $28 million) and their aggregate net
assets at the end of the reporting period amounted
to $1,654 million (2018: $1,648 million).

The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated the financial statements of the
University’s subsidiaries, except for CUHK Health
Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Limited, CUHK
Medical Centre Charitable Foundation Limited and
CUHK Medical Clinic Limited, as management is
of the opinion that the aggregate net assets or net
liabilities and net surplus or net deficit of the non-
consolidating subsidiaries would have constituted
only 1.7% (2018: 1.7%) and 0.6% (2018: 1.3%)
of the respective consolidated totals, which are
insignificant.

meRE
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AUBREE) FHR (REHBERR) AR5
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2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compilance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP”)
for institutions funded by the University Grants
Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the University. Note 2.3
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group and the University for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC funded and
non-UGC-funded activities (“CAG”) is first presented
in the current accounting period of the University
and the Group as stipulated in the UGC Notes on
Procedures. This is also a disclosure requirement
under SORP and is reflected in segment reporting
in note 3.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

2.2

FEEFBIR
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the University. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the
Group’s and the University’s financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(iii) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

The Group and the University have not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group and the University have applied HKFRS
9 retrospectively to items that existed at 1 July 2018
in accordance with the transition requirements.
The Group and the University have recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening fund balances at 1 July
2018. Therefore, comparative information continues
to be reported under HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on the fund balances at 1
July 2018.
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ELMAETERRR SR ER - MRIFHEETH
ERTERER R - AR EF 2T BRAER
MRIETTHERIMARRBEHERE - AITE(FLIZET
HURA R AR SR B R T LA RERR -

ERTBRES

BRI AEEN T HERABRERENABARER
FEERERNFIE (FEMBREEAD) & (FE
FAFEEREREA) 125] - B - THIMFBHEASRE
BARBHIBRERERH

() (EBMBREEA) Foik "ERTH,
(i) (EFBHEMEERN) F£1515 "EREHAME,

(i) & (ERMBERERTEET) 2BH22F

MMER 5 RTATHE
ARERERABLRRBEMRASEHA—EARER
HORTR] BRI RE

() (EBMIEMEEA) Foik "ERTH,

(EEMBHRESEN) FIRMK (FESFHER)
391k TERMTH - BRBNETE, - RERIHTIER
RFTEEREE SRAERNAETERFERIERS

REBBERE - KBEERASE (FEUHREE
Al) BRENMBAR-S—N\FLtA—BFENE
B - AEEELASHEREBANIKTZERD LN
ZT-N\FtA—HMBEMESF{EREZ - ALt - kb
RERMEER (FETTER) F39F\E -

TREFIRZT-N\FLE—BHBEE (FEMBER
HEA) FOFRHESNRE -

The Group KEBEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (i THlmR)

Other Restricted Funds HittSRESE

Transferred from Investments Revaluation Reserve HoEEEE hREREA 11,045
(Recycling) relating to financial assets now ZRERBRAREREN
measured at FVPL EREE

Recognition of financial assets now measured at FVPL  IRERAEBIESRAER 7,321

ENEREE

Net increase in Other Restricted Funds at 1 July HithZHAEER-FT—N\&F

2018 +tA—B:ZBm 18,366



The Group KEREERS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)
Endowment Funds in Restricted Funds SREZ-BRESE
Transferred from Investments Revaluation HRo@EiEEEREEA 3,449
Reserve (Recycling) relating to financial REBIRESRANREIEN
assets now measured at FVPL EREE
Net increase in Endowment Funds at 1 July BREER"F—NEtLtHA—
2018 =P =) 3,449
Investments Revaluation Reserve (Recycling) SHEE-TEEREE AR
in Restricted Funds
Transferred to Other Restricted Funds and HBHEHMWEABERBLE (14,494)
Endowment Funds relating to financial TIRFEBIBFIRANEREN
assets now measured at FVPL EREE
Transferred to Investments Revaluation Reserve — EHERTEEIREE G (193,294)
(Non-Recycling)
Net decrease in Investments Revaluation Reserve oJEESEEMREBR =T —
(Recycling) at 1 July 2018 NEtB—BZEY (207,788)
Investments Revaluation Reserve SEHEE-AUEEREEMR
(Non-Recycling) in Restricted Funds (@
Transferred from Investments Revaluation Reserve SR EEI = EXRAET T EYN 193,924
(Recycling)
Net increase in Investments Revaluation Reserve Ao BEKESEHERRZ
(Non-Recycling) at 1 July 2018 S—N\EtA—BziEm 193,924
The University A2 o
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IXE#ETFTT5IT)
Other Restricted Funds HittSREE
Recognition of financial assets now measured at FVPL RERAEBEREANE 7,321
FIENEREE
Net increase in Other Restricted Funds at 1 July HtEREENR_-_FS—NEFE
2018 tA—B~ZEm 7,321
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Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each class of the
Group’s and the University’s financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying
amounts of those financial assets determined in
accordance with HKAS 39 to those determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The Group
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BRBESF BEREIN M E LT ERIBE T AN
BEEFIIT -

a EMEENRERMEENIE

(EEBMBREEA) FFEENEELH=BE
BHHEER - REHRE  FREMEERERA
RERBREDEAREE - ZFFHWK (F
AEETER) FE39RMEER - HEFRIRE BN
REWFIE - L ESHEENBRRRRAR
B ENEMEE - RIF (FEMBEREEAD 59
1% EREEREEEMEENRFEEALEGHIR
AR ba

TRIIRABEELABRE (FEGFTERD 5
BMFMBZHERERMEEEDE - LR EFENE
ERE (EEEFHER) FE30RE (FEMFRE
A SBoREENREENER -

AERE
(BT THIR)

HKAS 39 carrying
amount at 30 June

HKFRS 9 carrying
amount at 1 July

2018
2018 Reclassification Remeasurement
g
(EEZFHEERD SHNE EHEE «§§ﬂg§§ﬁ%’
EIMFR=FT—N o (A — 5B
_ FEIMFRR=F—N
FXA=1+H _
MEESE FER—A
’ HEREE 3
Financial assets carried at FVOCI iEiBEHth 2 mIKESIRA - 231,965 - 231,965
(Note (i) REFENEREE
( HIsE ()
Financial assets carried at FVPL EBIRRZEAAENE
WEREE

Equity securities not held for trading JEfE S BSpR 7N - 26,656 7,321 33,977

(Notes (i) and (ii)) ( Bt&E () & (i) )
Unit Trusts (Note (i) BUERES (M ) 4 524003 5,395 - 1,529,488

1,524,093 32,051 7,321 1,563,465

Financial assets classified as IRIR (&E=EHER)
available-for-sale under EIFELEATHHE
HKAS 39 THMHAE
At fair value (Notes (i) and (iii)) BAoREE (MR O &G) 264,015 (264,015) - -
At cost less impairment loss AR E2E 1 (1) - -

(Note (i) (s i) 264,016 (264,016) : i




The University KE o
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (EEETFTTHIR)

HKFRS 9 carrying
amount at 1 July

HKAS 39 carrying
amount at 30 June

2018
2018 Reclassification Remeasurement (EEISHRE
(EEGFTEEA Eiba ] SEtE #=E1)
ERIAMRI—F—/1 IR =T
FXA=1+H FtH—HME
HEREE3E ESmE
Financial assets carried at FVPL ZBEIEARERE
HNEREE
Equity securities not held for trading  JEiG{E S BRI AN - 1 7,321 7,322
(Note (ii)) ( FEE (i) )
Financial assets classified as RIE (HFESEHHEER) 1 (1) - -
available-for-sale, at cost less EIMFLFEATHHE
impairment loss under EREE - RAFHR
Notes: FdEE:
(i)  Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for () R (SEostEn)) $£39%  JHIEESSH
trading were classified as available-for-sale BAZAENEATHEESHEEL A E:

financial assets at fair value. These equity
securities are classified as at FVPL under
HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible for and

£ - IRIE (FEUBREER) BoR - ZFRE
REFEEBERRAAENENE - RIFENEH

designated at FVOCI by the Group or the EABPHABEEAABEEREBRAEZEIL
University. BmRNAEE -

(i) Under HKAS 39, unlisted equity securities (i) 1R¥E (ERDETER) FE391F > FELHRAHE
were classified as available-for-sale financial S¥E AT ESREENIR AR R E i
assets at cost less impairment loss. They are £ - IRIE (BEITIREER]) 590 Z=ZIELTH
classified as at FVPL under HKFRS 9. BAEAseEBESEAREHESE -

(i) Under HKAS 39, certain unit trusts were (i) 1R¥E (EHEDHERY $£3915F > MOBEREER
classified as available-for-sale financial assets EHEATHHEESRHEELUAREBSE - R
at fair value. They are classified as at FVPL 1B (EBIEHREEN) £ SZEaERE
under HKFRS 9.

EREBERRAREEDNE -
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For an explanation of how the Group and the
University classify and measure financial assets and
recognise related gains and losses under HKFRS
9, see respective accounting policy notes in notes
2.9 and 2.11.

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 July 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group and the University did not designate or
de-designate any financial asset or financial liability
at FVPL at 1 July 2018.

b. Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (‘ECL”)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group and the University apply the new ECL
model to financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents and
accounts and other receivables) and contract
assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (note 2.12);

For further details on the Group and the
University’s accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see note 2.11.

c. Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative periods has
not been restated. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in funds
as at 1 July 2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017/18 continues to be reported
under HKAS 39 and thus may not be comparable
with the current period.

BEAXBRENASRE (FEMBREEL) $Fok
DENESREENERERNS REENAR - B
TR AT BURMIEE2.9%2.11 -

FREEMEBNTEBENRETE - FREEMEaRRn
ZF-N\FtRA—HMEREELRZERER (FE
PATSEREHER]) SBOIRFRRIE -

REF—N\FtHA—H  KABERRABIEIEEN
BHEEEAEBERRAREENENEENSE
MaefRE -

b. (FEEE

(EBMBREER) SR 'FRBEEEE, &
XM (EEFFTER) E395FM "EEEEE,
B - FRGEEBERARRSEIBEEERNEE
ERAMEEERE - AmER (FEDFHER) F391%
# "EELESE ) SREAERERERERSE -

ABRENABRTAHEEHEEEXBRARE
BHRAENEREE(ARRENFESEEY
DA FEUST AR TR R LA FE UL RR) B ( BB B 53R a5 2
Al) SB15RFAARENEHEE(MFE2.12)

BRAARREERABNEEHEEARNS T BUERN
15 REtEE2.11 -

c. BE

FRTAES - A (FEUBREEL) FoMRFE
RERTBEREHCEWER

- BRELBIENERREET - RA (FEUH
WEELD) BFFIELENEMEERAEEER
“F-N\FtRA—HERREED AL - =F
—t/ —NE2FNEHEFERE (FEEITE
Al) 5839 IR - BURWRESIEEASFRIELLE -



- The assessment on the determination of the
business model within which a financial asset
is held has been made on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that existed at 1 July
2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9
by the Group and the University).

If, at the date of initial application, the assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that financial instrument.

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers. The adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact on
the financial position and the financial result of the
Group and the University but only the presentation
of contract assets and contract liabilities.

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if
the Group and the University have an unconditional
right to consideration. If the Group and the University
recognise the related income (see note 2.16) before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
for the promised services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified as a
contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
non-refundable consideration, or is contractually
required to pay non-refundable consideration and
the amount is already due, before the Group and
the University recognise the related income. For
a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilites of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis (see note 2.12).

- EERAERMEENRBEANTERECS—
NELtA—BRBRBRABERER (FBH
BREER) FRER) NEBRBRELFT
fi o

WM EHAREEREREE RS
MESBSRARTE  URZEHIES
—s—\EtH— BERBKATEEELESE -

(i) (EBMBEMEEA) F150% ' BEEHUE

(ERMBREEN) F15/EET —BRIEREE
PERMNmNETRAMNGEER - (FEUBRE
#ER) 55150RMA (BFEDETER) B181% TUwE .

 HREHEEmMEHRBEEN R - & (FE
SETEA) F1 1% TRESH , - HisPHEESHN
DRHEHE -

(BERMFRELER) 5150775 AFRIMIEMNE

ERERTE  BEESRMBERRERASTRERFGH
EENPARRERENUE - 5 - BEALTEE
o B (FRMBHREER) F16RHABRER
RENHBRR MM BRIFLEBEAEAZE - HE
SINENEERGHER -

RiE (BEMFMEEN) F150%  RERBERN
REHEE RGO WIRA ER - ZI'EEW.,\FEIBI-XIE"
MRABEENABERFAEZE SN EREREHN
REZATEZAEREA - AR ERERGNEE
(RHfEE2.16) - B - ERFZITARENNE

RAEGHBERZIFRENAELH SRR -

EABEENASHEBERIIA LA - ERENAET
FERETRE - HIREEFPNE—GX - 2FFEHNEE
WFEHER - HRZESH - THESHNEGHNEE
MENaENFENFERAIR (RIiEE2.12) -
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Previously, contract balances relating to courses
and services were presented in the Statements
of Financial Position under “Accounts Receivable,
Prepayments and Other Receivables” or “Accounts
Payable and Accruals” respectively and the income
was recognised for the reasons explained in the
paragraph above.

To reflect these changes in presentation, the
Group and the University have made the following
adjustment at 1 July 2018, as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 15:

“Accounts Receivable” amounting to $40,262,000 for
the Group and the University which were previously
included in Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables (note 20) are now included under
Contract Assets (note 19); and

“Student Fees Received in Advance and Caution
Money Received” amounting to $489,265,000 for
the Group and the University which were included
in Accounts Payable and Accruals (note 22) are now
included under Contract Liabilities (note 19).

(iii) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

This Interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense orincome
(or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an
entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of the
non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)
22 does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the
Group and the University.
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2.4 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions, and
cash flows and any unrealised surplus arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised deficit resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.11), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

2.4 KIBAE

MELSIEABREEEFINER KBRRBERSH
EREFMESHAZTEELMMAEF AL - i
MEFIERE - WEEHTTEEENTEZEZLR - EF
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HMARSIRNERNEHET ZRARSIRNABRER -
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2.5 Fixed Assets

Items of Fixed Assets, other than Construction
In Progress and Art Collection, are stated in
the Statement of Financial Position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2.11).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2.11)
and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.11). The residual value of Art
Collection is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, therefore Art Collection is not
depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the
Government”) for use by the University is recorded
at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in anincrease in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives or economic lives, whichever
is shorter, as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land  Over the remaining

held for Own Use under lease term
Operating Leases

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture
and Fittings

3-10years

Shorter of useful
life and duration of
project

Assets acquired for
Research Projects

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of a fixed asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2.6

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2.11). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (see note 2.11).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to Statment of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capitalised Development
Costs

5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives
as set out above.
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2.7

2.8

Investment Properties

Investment Properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.5) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
currently undetermined future use.

Investment Properties are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2.11).
Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from Investment Properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.16(v).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
orinterest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.5.

Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases, except for
property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis.

(i) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Group or the University leases out
assets under operating leases, the assets are
included in the Statement of Financial Position
according to their nature and depreciated in
accordance with the accounting policies as set
outin note 2.5. Income arising from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with the
income recognition policies, as set out in note
2.16(v).
(i) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group or the University has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

2.7
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2.9

Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group and the University commit
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at
FVPL for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in surplus or deficit. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

()  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018
(a) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group and
the University are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- amortised costs, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value at FVPL if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in surplus or deficit.

(b)  Equity Investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group and the University
make an irrevocable election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
other restricted funds. It is not recycled through
surplus or deficit. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in the surplus or deficit in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.16(iii).
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(I
(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
University had the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity were classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
were initially recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they were stated in the
Statement of Financial Position at amortised
cost less impairment losses (see note 2.11(a)

(11).

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as current assets and were initially
stated at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Investments in equity securities that did not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured were recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.11(a)(ll)).

Limited Partnership investment and alternative
investments were initially recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value was remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Other investments in securities were classified
as available-for-sale securities and were
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised directly
in investment revaluation reserve, except
for impairment losses (see note 2.11(a)(ll))
and, in the case of monetary items such as
debt securities, foreign exchange gains and
losses which were recognised directly in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. Where these investments were
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method was recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. When these investments were
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in investment
revaluation reserve was recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.
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(vi) Investments in securities were recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or
the University commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

2.10 Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are recognised
when the Group and the University have an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If income has been
recognised before the Group or the University have
an unconditional right to receive a consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note
2.12). Receivables are stated at amortised costs
using the effective interest method less allowance

for credit losses (see note 2.11(a)).

2.11 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets

(a) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

(I) Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

The Group and the University recognise a
loss allowance for ECLs on financial assets
measured at amortised cost and contract assets
as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note 2.12).

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL and equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

- ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group and the University in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group and
the University expect to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate
financial assets and accounts and other
receivables and discounted using the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof, where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group and the University
are exposed to credit risk.
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In measuring ECLs, the Group and the University
take into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts and other
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s or
the University’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
and the University recognise a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group and the University
compare the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group and the University consider that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group or the
University in full, without recourse by the Group
or the University to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset
is 12 months past due.
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The Group and the University consider both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit

risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’'s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group or the
University.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in surplus or deficit. The Group
and the University recognise an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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(I

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group or the University determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Prior to 1 July 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on
financial assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g.
accounts and other receivables and held-to-
maturity financial assets). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
included:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss was determined and recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as follows:
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For unquoted equity securities and receivables
that were carried at cost, the impairment loss
was measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting was material. Impairment
losses for receivables were reversed if in a
subsequent period the amount of the impairment
loss decreases. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost were not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting was
material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised in investment
revaluation reserve was reclassified in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that was recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure was
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
were not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets was recognised directly in investment
revaluation reserve.
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(b) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that Fixed Assets and
Investments in Subsidiaries in the University’s
Statement of Financial Position may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. When an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independently of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of the asset or
assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.
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Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
and the University recognise revenue (see note
2.16) before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in
the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy set outin note 2.11(a)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional (see
note 2.10).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
and the University recognise the related revenue
(see note 2.16). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group and the University have
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group and the University
recognise the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.

2.13 Accounts Payable

214

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
Equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity
requirements, rather than for investment purposes.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.11(a)(i).
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215

2.16

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
University has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income Recognition

Income is classified by the Group and the University
when it arises from the sale of goods, the provision
of services or the use by others of the Group’s and
the University’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s and the University’s business.

Income is recognised when the control over a prod-
uct or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group or
the University is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group’s and the University’s
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grants Committee (‘UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to the General and Development Reserve
Fund in the reporting period in accordance
with prevailing UGC guidelines.

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for
specific purpose spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded in Deferred Capital Funds
and are recognised as income over the useful
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(vi)

lives of the related assets when the assets
are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes
are recognised as income to the extent of
the related expenditure incurred during the
reporting period.

Government assistance in the form of interest-
free loans for the first five years spent on
capital expenditure of the teaching hospital is
initially recorded as liabilities and is recognised
as income over the useful lives of the related
assets when the assets are putinto use, to the
extent of the related depreciation expenses
incurred for that period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Tuition, programme and other fees

Tuition, programme and other fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Donations and benefactions

Donations and benefactions in cash and cash
equivalents or other investment instruments
for general purpose are recognised as income
at fair values when it is probable that they will
be received, which is generally upon receipt of
cash. Donations and Benefactions for specific
purposes designated by the donors are initially
recognised as deferred income when received,
and then as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the year.
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(vii) Other service income

Other service income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.17 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.18 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment with an employee
who has been in continuous employment of
not less than two years. The gratuity, together
with the total amount of the University’s
contributions to a particular retirement scheme,
will add up to 10% or 15% of the appointee’s
basic salary drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement scheme is calculated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets
is deducted. The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the Group or the University,
the recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the scheme
or reductions in future contributions to the
scheme.

(vii)
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Service cost and net interest expenses/
(income) on the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) are recognised in the line item of staff
cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Current service cost
is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period.
When the benefits of a scheme are changed
or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure at
the earlier of when the scheme amendment
or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expenses/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s or the University’s
obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement schemes are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in restricted funds.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group or the University can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.19 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2.20 Related Parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(Vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2.21 Taxation

The University is exempted from payment of Hong
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland

Revenue Ordinance.

2.21 Hi#B
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
AERRERABYA RS NP EREE

Segment reporting prepared for the year ended 30 June 2019 with the adoption of the CAGs effective from 1

July 2018.

S8ETT-NFAA=THILFENSERE - HEMTR=F—/\FtHA—HiE

BITNHEGRADEIES MRS -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA ¥ TTHIR)
The Group
REER
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2019
Activities IEEESEREE) Segment Total
Self-Financed Research  Teaching er Tr?n_sadflon
Programmes  Activies  Hospital  Activiies = mination
WEDEE) BELESE WIEY HEER  HitEs AFELR L
A S
Revenue KA
Govemment Subventions BURTEE) 5,051,884 1,559 65,983 - 1,756 - 5,121,182
Tuition, Programme and B - REN 1,073,407 1,233,827 - - 9 (25) 2,307,218
Other Fees HhE
Interest and Net Investment ~ FIER &I EF 221,540 22,997 8,279 21,631 261,315 212 535,974
Income Yizs
Donations and Benefactions ~ 1REBAZIEFR 223,413 6,394 101,642 369,632 92,118 (3,855) 789,344
Ancillary Services Income EHENARFSUIA 46,747 1,557 - - 303,681 (773) 351,212
Other Income EAITA 94,315 59,327 169,060 4,982 295548 (1,272) 621,960
6,711,306 1,325,661 344.964 396,245 954427 (5,713) 9,726,890
Expenditure b2
Learning and Research B3l R EATE
Instruction and Research HE MR 4,646,735 1,096,295 313,003 - 90,060 (211) 6,145,882
Library EES:] 278,923 - - - 1,341 - 280,264
Central Computing Facilities ~ SPREERRS. 167,096 - - - 20,516 1 187,613
Other Academic Services Eh B ERARTS 148,775 12,512 - 24234 7,118 (1,014) 191,625
Institutional Support REHENARTS
Managementand General ~ BE&—RFIR 337,540 (24) - 55571 5531  (375) 398,243
Premises and Related BEREETH 727,624 - - - 69,405 162 797,191
Expenses
Student and General BEN—RHE 407,279 - - - 251,369 (4,253) 654,395
Education Services =<0
Other Activities HAth=s75 13,767 - - - 17,822 (23) 31,566
Inter-segment Expenditure ~ 238fEISzH/(KE]) 45,933 (231,553) 55,259 - 130,361 - -
/(Recovery)
6,773,672 877,230 368,262 79,805 593,523 (5,713) 8,686,779
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year ZASEREE(E51E)/BE%  (62,366) 448,431 (23,298) 316,440 360,904 - 1,040,111
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

(CONTINUED)
KEBEERAKBA K H 2 a5 (48)

Segment reporting prepared for the year ended 30 June 2018 prior to the adoption of UGC CAGs.
R EERA D BIES | AIEN 2EE—S—/\FA=THLFENITRE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFE¥FTTHIR)
The Group
REBEERE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2018
Activities N EEEEEE Segment Total
Self-Financed Research Other Transaction
Programmes  Activities  Activities Elimination
HEZEE) BELERiE WEEH HithiEs 2MELR
EEN S H B
Revenue WA
Government Subventions ~ BIFFEBN 4,653,373 1,107 229,585 43,088 - 4,927,153
Tuition, Programme and B . R®EM 1,026,732 1,096,163 - 12 (7) 2,122,900
Other Fees Hithe &
Interest and Net Investment I B &% EF 169,012 61,913 4,070 668,313 - 903,308
Income Yk
Donations and Benefactions 8B K380 - 3,217 96,766 674,388 - 774,371
Ancillary Services Income  EEBIARFSUIA 22,248 2,601 - 291,809 (25) 316,633
Other Income EATA 13,910 45,766 203,888 347,057 (788) 609,833
5,885,275 1,210,767 534,309 2,024,667 (820) 9,654,198
Expenditure k-2
Learning and Research Bl K ERF
Instruction and Research BN 3,880,422 998,549 502,439 386,059 (88) 9,767,381
Library EES:E 248,780 - - 7,072 - 255,852
Central Computing Facilites S REERR 137,828 - - 21,393 4 159,225
Other Academic Services — Efth# 2R 132,771 16,168 - 17,664  (673) 165,930
Institutional Support PN e
Management and General EER—AHREIE 349,034 - - 39,961 26 389,021
Premises and Related BFRERA%E 655,036 - - 85,031 - 740,067
Expenses
Student and General BEN—EHE 182,765 - - 350,476 (89) 533,152
Education Services E==hE
Other Activities HAh=EE 13,223 - - 16,971 - 30,194
5,599,859 1,014,717 502,439 924,627 (820) 8,040,822
Surplus for the year AEEELS 285,416 196,050 31,870 1,100,040 - 1,613,376




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(CONTINUED)

REBERKXBRA KX NS EHHE(E)

Segment reporting prepared for the year ended 30 June 2019 with the adoption of the UGC CAGs effective
from 1 July 2018.

B8ETT-NFARA=THILFENSERE - HEATRSS—\FthA—BEETNHRES N2 BISS Mk -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETTTHITR)
The University
RE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities 2019
Activities IFRESETE Total
Self-Financed Research  Teaching Other
Programmes Activites ~ Hospital Activities
HWEZEE BE%ERRE MRl HEBR  HEE k]
EEN
Revenue WA
Government Subventions BATER 5,051,884 1,559 65,983 - 1,756 5,121,182
Tuition, Programme and BE . FEN 1,073,407 1,231,101 - - - 2,304,508
Other Fees Htt &
Interest and Net Investment  FI B XILEiH 221,540 22,997 8,279 18,694 202,427 473,937
Income gk
Donations and Benefactions 8BS AIEFR 223,413 1,755 101,642 369,632 67,489 763,931
Ancillary Services Income  HHBIARFSUIA 46,747 1,557 - - 296,105 344,409
Other Income HAgA 94,315 59,285 169,060 - 293,204 615,864
6,711,306 1,318,254 344,964 388,326 860,981 9,623,831
Expenditure Z i
Learning and Research Bl R HzE
Instruction and Research HE N 4,646,735 1,096,295 313,003 - 88,075 6,144,108
Library S 278,923 - - - 1,341 280,264
Central Computing Facilites 1 REEA:ER 167,096 - - - 20516 187,612
Other Academic Services  Hh#ER: 148,775 - - - 6,488 155,263
Institutional Support KEBEHBD AR TS
Management and General EIEK—HREIE 337,540 (24) - - 5,345 342,861
Premises and Related BFENEEZE 727,624 - - - 63354 790,978
Expenses
Student and General Ban—mHE 407,279 - - - 192,470 599,749
Education Services E=pd
Other Activities HthEE#E 13,767 - - - 15,057 28,824
Inter-segment Expenditure 28BS H/(KE]) 45,933 (231,553) 55,259 - 130,361 -
/(Recovery)

6,773,672 864,718 368,262 - 523,007 8,529,659

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year A4 (58)/E8%  (62,366) 453,536  (23,298) 388,326 337,974 1,094,172

49



3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(CONTINUED)
KERELKBWA RS H2EHRE (48)
Segment reporting prepared for the year ended 30 June 2018 prior to the adoption of UGC CAGs.
i EgR Ao BIEs fiEH ZEE—S—N\EA=1THLFENIETRE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
The University
A=
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2018
Activities IFRESETE Segment Total
Self-Financed Research Other Transaction
Elimination

Programmes Activities ~ Activities

HEDER BELERE WREy HttED 2MEZR 4B

EE S8
Revenue KA
Government Subventions  BUFER) 4,653,373 1,107 229,585 43,088 - 4,927,153
Tuition, Programme and B R EN 1,026,732 1,093,061 - - - 2,119,793
Other Fees Hith &
Interest and Net Investment  FIE &R EF 169,012 61,913 4,070 603,098 - 838,093
Income Yis
Donations and Benefactions 188 &80 - 2,012 96,766 632,601 - 731,379
Ancillary Services Income  HRBEIRRFEUTA 22,248 2,601 - 285,253 - 310,102
Other Income ELBURA 13,910 45,721 203,888 343,860 - 607,379
5,885,275 1,206,415 534,309 1,907,900 - 9,533,899
Expenditure -2 ]
Learning and Research Bili R 5%
Instruction and Research HE NS 3,880,422 998,549 502,439 383,008 - 5,764,418
Library = 248,780 - - 7072 - 255852
Central Computing Facilites  tRERZHE 137,828 - - 21,393 - 159,221
Other Academic Services  Efth#(E2R# 132,771 3,134 - 10,812 - 146,717
Institutional Support K ERHED AR TS
Management and General EIE&—HREIE 349,034 - - 10,139 - 359,173
Premises and Related BFRERERE 655,036 - - 67,328 - 722,359
Expenses
Student and General BER—MHE 182,765 - - 296,582 - 479,347
Education Services Bi%
Other Activities HhEEg 13,223 - - 14,089 - 27,312
5,599,859 1,001,683 502,439 810,418 - 7,914,399
Surplus for the year AEERLR 285,416 204,732 31,870 1,097,482 -

1,619,500




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(CONTINUED)
KEERERABRA RS HAEHEE (8)

Note: (1) Inter-segment transactions mainly included overhead recovered from self-financed programmes,

Bt EE:

externally-funded activities and costs recovered for the services provided among UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities.

(2) These disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the SORP for UGC-

funded Institutions. The reported segments are defined by source of funding. The disclosures are
not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments. The SORP is
intended to complement HKFRSs, covering areas which are unique to UGC-funded institutions.

(3) The University determines the basis of allocation of costs between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded

activities with reference to the UGC Notes on Procedures and the CAGs which is effective from 1
July 2018.

(4) The CAGs define principles and approaches of cost allocation, including the definition of cost pools

and cost drivers for UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities on a full cost recovery basis.

(5) The comparative figures of 2017/18 with the adoption of the CAGs are exempted by the UGC in

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)

accordance with SORP in the first reporting period of adoption of such segment reporting in 2018/19.
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FRMLLEDMM/ENE —ERSEHARSR -

Cost allocation principles for UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities
The principles for cost allocation and overhead recovery of the University are:

No cross subsidisation between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities;

All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and
borne by the activities;

All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which
cannot be separately identified to specific activities, are allocated to segments as overhead recovery
according to the University’s internal policy.

HESEWRFNETBEHESAAZEFA
AEBRAEAEEEERAWEIMNRAIT

HESEMTFRESEMEE IR BR X
FREEZRAREEESNERBRZFENTHRIE
FRETESFREBRIEENEEER - WhRERM - TERNEBRE - ARRABAEBRICRS
PDE -
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS  EIfF&h)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAZ¥ETFTTHITR)

The Group and the University

REERENKE
2019 2018
Subventions from UGC wESEH
Block Grants WS 3,827,602 3,822,251
Supplementary Grants IBHHENE 416,881 260,284
4,244,483 4,082,535
Earmarked Grants EERERHME
Research Grants HEwENE 243,126 255,083
Housing Benefits EEE 11,915 19,143
Area of Excellence ==F =y SKEY 21,531 17,614
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences ARAI SR - 1,375
Knowledge Transfer Activities N EEREE 12,356 14,268
Other Earmarked Grants HtiEEREHE 25,450 29,660
Rates and Government Rent Refund RIEEM MBI 69,031 65,896
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions,  ER##HEISEEE - NE - 162,645 167,799
Repairs and Improvements (“AA&I”) HIE RN E T RS
Block Allocation
4,790,537 4,653,373
Grants from Government Agencies BRI tE IR 330,645 273,780

5,121,182

4,927,153




4.1 Matching Grants

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

[T ape g

(BT TTHIR)

Matching Donations

Matching Donations

Grants Grants
[T B Be¥dfiEnE B
The Group The University
REBELGES RE
2019 2019
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEERR 1,445,046 1,575,160 1,445,046 1,491,882
Income (Note) WA (ME5E)
Grants/Donation HHENE /1B - - - -
Interest and Net Investment Income  Fll B K% & iSRS 36,574 44,463 36,574 40,766
36,574 44,463 36,574 40,766
Expenditure Z i
Teaching and Research HEBNAR 35,054 51,990 35,054 51,917
Student Exchange Activities BERTEEN 4,599 6,439 4,599 6,439
Student Development BYEE 23,540 9,735 23,540 8,284
Scholarships REF 4,520 11,086 4,520 9,407
Bursaries BhEE 42 314 42 241
Capital Projects BERIER - 29,675 - 29,675
67,755 109,239 67,755 105,963
Transfer (to)/from Capital Fund B(E)/5EEES (107) 39,403 (107) 39,365
Balance - End of Year FHREER 1,413,758 1,549,787 1,413,758 1,466,050
The Group The University
REBELES RE
2018 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year T4 1,428,899 1,537,584 1,428,899 1,450,882
Income (Note) WA (MI5E)
Grants/Donation #HENE /1B - - - -
Interest and Net Investment Income  Fll B K% & iFUES 72,360 110,682 72,360 107,957
72,360 110,682 72,360 107,957
Expenditure Z i
Teaching and Research BERIRSE 26,506 54,162 26,506 54,050
Student Exchange Activities BERNIEE 5,260 5,346 5,260 5,345
Student Development BeRE 21,934 5,947 21,934 2,501
Scholarships 1REE 4,752 13,283 4,752 10,767
Bursaries BhEE - 275 - 179
Capital Projects HiEER - 31,034 - 31,034
58,452 110,047 58,452 103,876
Transfer from Capital Fund BREEES 2,239 36,941 2,239 36,919
Balance - End of Year TR 1,445,046 1,445,046 1,491,882

1,575,160
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4.2

Note: For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus
buildings and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on
a dollar-for-dollar matching basis up to $60 million and on a $1 for $2 matching basis (i.e $1 Government
Grant for every $2 donation) for amounts beyond $60 million and limited to an overall total of $600 million
for each institute. There were no matching grants received during the year (2018: $nil).

izt R EEIRHMESNAABREEAREERSRRESE - EFaRARBEFINER - HhER
EEATEAREEAREN—TH -t R)FE - HRSHEIU—aHmaitb R EIEmaih A BRaE
B -TEA#EER)FE  MEBMEERSTSEAMEEHRNET - RAFEABERLABIZH R HEHME
BE (CF—NE: Tw) -

Matching Grants for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students
B B4 RtERc S EIRHEnE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAE#TFTTHIR)

The Group and the University

REBERELAE
Matching Donation Matching Donation
Grants Grants
BosdwhBnE B3 [ESLE B3
2019 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year  SF#l458% 5,054 152 5,790 144
Income KA
Interest and Net Investment MEMEEE 15 157 116 152
Income Ies ‘
115 157 116 ‘ 152
Expenditure ZH
Programme Costs JEERMX
Academic Related Programs BiitErmEs 426 93 250 -
Career Related Programs FEEAERIER 170 120 59 142
Cultural Related Programs X{bHEEAIER 690 39 485 2
Service Related Programs R¥StERAIE R 149 57 58 -
1,435 309 852 144
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) F42&58% (Mizt1) 3,734 - 5,054 152

Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 25).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the matching and use of the
matching grants under the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students as set
out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2018-19.
MizE: (1) BERERREEETWERN (MiFE25)
(2) REB—N\/—NEEABENE FBE AMEERTERtEIREIER T BC T #H BN & A0 K (3 FRRR R ARA -



4.3

oty /
(3

—

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“SSE”)

S B4R RREEZEMETE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA BT TTHIR)
The Group and the University

4.4

REERGAE
The University excluding CUSCS* Cuscs*
RETETEEEIZERR HEEZER
2019 2018 2019 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year TR 2,872 5,686 1,558 650
Income A
Grants received/(refunded) EUr/GERE)ER 6,969 594 (531) 1,165
Interest and Net Investment Income Fl| & &5 B 128 91 18 25
7,097 685 (513) 1,190
Expenditure T
Student Exchange Scholarships BERRIRER 2,555 3,499 190 282
2,555 3,499 190 282
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) FLREEES (KiEE1) 7,414 2,872 855 1558

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 25).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under SSE
as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2018-19.
MizE: (1) SRCEEEETNEA (MiEE25) -
(2) RIB-—N/—NEEABERE FRERIIRRENF SR EIER TR R ARE

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students (“SSEBR”)
Er84Ea - FH-8%, EZRENE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)

The Group and the University

REERRAE
The University excluding CUSCS* Cuscs*
ARETEEREEZER HREZER
2019 2018 2019 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FEWEERR 812 6,337 405 661
Income WA
Grants received/(refunded) Eu/(GRE) &R 1,612 (4,704) (124) (242)
Interest and Net Investment Income Fl| 2 K38 E B ES 21 79 3 12
1,633 (4,625) (121) (230)
Expenditure X
Student Exchange Scholarships BERRRES 1,109 900 139 26
1,109 900 139 26
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) 424585 (BiiE1) 1,336 812 145 405

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 25).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under
SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2018-19.
MizE: (1) FREEETEETREA (iEE25) -
(2) REB-—N/—NEEABEBRE LBERIT " -1 MEXRENFBIRIEERhIIRE AR MR -
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TUITION, PROGRAMME AND OTHER FEES

2 FELHMKE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZ#STF7T5IR)
The Group The University
REBEERS RE
2019 2018 2019 2018
UGC-Funded Programmes HEFEHRE
Tuition Fees BE 1,053,048 1,010,305 1,053,048 1,010,305
Programme and Other Fees e M E AU E 18,193 16,427 18,193 16,427
Non-UGC-Funded Programmes EHESERE
Tuition Fees =F- 1,223,781 1,086,574 1,221,080 1,083,472
Programme and Other Fees RENHAE 12,196 9,594 12,187 9,589
2,307,218 2,122,900 2,304,508 2,119,793
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME MR RBE TN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAZ#ETFTT5IT) o
The Group The University
REEE RE
2019 2018 2019 2018
Interest Income from Listed Securities LEERN B ES 34,789 85,599 29,902 81,444
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities JELEmEEF EYES 32,313 45,533 32,313 45,506
Interest Income from Time Deposits TEHIEFFIE 274,245 198,929 255,682 186,136
Net Realised and Unrealised HittBHeBEHMKR 153,427 487,216 141,285 469,661
Gain on Other Securities BRI IFRE
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange BE&IRFEREIRZINE  (27,524) 20,488 (29,882) 17,969
(Loss)/Gain from Time Deposits SRR (E51E)/ Wi
Dividends from Listed and rTHRIEETE 66,351 65,289 42,264 37,123
Unlisted Securities R B
Other Investment Income Hinie B WS 2,373 254 2,373 254
535,974 903,308 473,937 838,093




7. DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS

R R AR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
The Group The University
KRB N

2019 2018 2019 2018
Capital Projects HElEE 23,075 71,355 19,686 57,614
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REF RILMEE 30,610 46,276 23,273 29,987
Research Activities HEEE 159,357 96,902 159,357 96,902
Development of Morningside College =~ ZERREE[R - 1,823 - 1,823
Development of S. H. Ho College BREGER - 2 - 2
Development of C. W. Chu College ZRWER 30 288 30 288
Development of Lee Woo Sing College ~ ERMEBEZR 402 10,354 402 10,354
Development of Wu Yee Sun College ZERMERER 506 269 506 269
Development of Teaching Hospital BRNEBER 369,632 326,709 369,632 326,709
General Academic Use —RHEBAR 205,732 220,393 191,045 207,431

789,344 774,371

763,931

731,379

Note: Total donations of $318.3 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the year

(2018: $192.1 million).

Mzt AEEREEESSEECREERBCNER=F—TN\E=18x CT-N\E —fAT=F5—1+&#x) -
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ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME

F BN AR FE WA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZB#SF7T5lIR)

The Group The University
REER RE
2019 2018 2019 2018
Resident Halls BAES 161,540 156,273 161,204 156,007
Rental Income HASWA 93,281 72,897 86,798 66,630
Catering and Hospitality Services ER R EERE 4,842 6,467 4,850 6,467
University Press RE R4 10,219 9,466 10,219 9,466
Rental Contribution from Staff FEHEEHIR 12,715 12,005 12,715 12,005
Retail Store Sales TEEHHE 1,809 1,707 1,809 1,709
Others ELh 66,806 57,818 66,814 57,818
351,212 316,633 344,409 310,102
OTHER INCOME Hitigt A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 7T5IR)

The Group The University
REER PA

2019 2018 2019 2018
Service Income BRFSUTA 234,144 244184 234,674 244,664
Contract Research RAEH 188,109 173,016 187,913 172,430
Miscellaneous Hih 199,707 192,633 193,277 190,285
621,960 609,833 615,864 607,379




10. EXPENDITURE i}
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LA¥&F7T5lR)

The Group
REERE

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2019
and Benefits Expenses Total

ET &
KeAEF BEmM% e B

Learning and Research Biig & 5%

Instruction and Research BELMRR 4,365,423 1,562,090 218,369 6,145,882
Library EIEEE 110,659 163,066 6,539 280,264
Central Computing Facilities th RE RS b 110,887 57,704 19,022 187,613
Other Academic Services EL{th 2R 7% 146,416 42,592 2,617 191,625

4,733,385 1,825,452 246,547 6,805,384

Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AXEEENARFE(KIzE10.1)

Management and General EEN—REIE 305,141 76,369 16,733 398,243

Premises and Related Expenses  {&FNEESH 222,352 361,000 213,839 797,191

Student and General Education BER—BBEEE 308,435 336,134 9,826 654,395
Services

Other Activities HEFE 18,282 12,942 342 31,566

854,210 786,445 240,740 1,881,395

Total Expenditure - 2019 “E-hFEZH 5,687,595 2,611,897 487,287 8,686,779

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2018

and Benefits Expenses Total
ST HM
KAER REm% e L]
Learning and Research Bili Rz

Instruction and Research BELMR 4,123,240 1,430,563 213,578 5,767,381
Library EEEE 103,042 146,730 6,080 255,852
Central Computing Facilities th REREET 101,746 37,375 20,104 159,225
Other Academic Services EL{th BB AR 134,395 29,615 1,920 165,930

4,462,423 1,644,283 241,682 6,348,388

Institutional Support (Note 10.1) XEEENARFE(KIzE10.1)

Management and General EEN—MREIE 285,969 85,417 17,635 389,021

Premises and Related Expenses  1{&F MBS H 195,944 327,271 216,852 740,067

Student and General Education BER—WRBEEHE 217,212 306,609 9,331 533,152
Services

Other Activities HAhE 20,454 9,286 454 30,194

719,579 728,583 244,272 1,692,434

Total Expenditure - 2018 S N\FEZH 5,182,002 2,372,866 485,954 8,040,822
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10. EXPENDITURE i (Continued #8)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZ#TFIT5IT)

The University
K2

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2019

and Benefits Expenses Total
ST Er
AeAgEFl RERR e k]
Learning and Research BiliRif%R

Instruction and Research HE AT 4,365,390 1,560,360 218,358 6,144,108
Library SES:E 110,659 163,066 6,539 280,264
Central Computing Facilities h R EE AR it 110,887 57,703 19,022 187,612
Other Academic Services ELth BB AR S 129,408 24,045 1,810 155,263

4,716,344 1,805,174 245,729 6,767,247

Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  KE2EHBNBRF(Fi5E10.1)

Management and General EBN—MREE 250,523 75,761 16,577 342,861

Premises and Related Expenses EFAEHETH 221,688 357,556 211,734 790,978

Student and General Education B4 N—RBEERE 285,814 304,420 9,515 599,749
Services

Other Activities HAhE% 18,001 10,529 294 28,824

776,026 748,266 238,120 1,762,412

Total Expenditure - 2019 —E-hFETH 5,492,370 2,553,440 483,849 8,529,659

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2018

and Benefits Expenses Total
ST
MAEF TERZ FE B
Learning and Research B{ig R 5T

Instruction and Research HENASE 4,123,199 1,427,653 213,566 5,764,418
Library EES:E 103,042 146,730 6,080 255,852
Central Computing Facilities th RERSGEL I 101,746 37,371 20,104 159,221
Other Academic Services Hth 2 EBIRFE 122,711 22,190 1,816 146,717

4,450,698 1,633,944 241,566 6,326,208

Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  XZHEEERTFE(HIEE10.1)

Management and General EBN—REE 256,151 85,564 17,458 359,173

Premises and Related Expenses BFLEERH 195,210 312,619 214,530 722,359

Student and General Education B4 N —RBEERS 197,448 272,878 9,021 479,347
Services

Other Activities HhEEFE 20,250 6,654 408 27,312

669,059 677,715 241,417 1,588,191

Total Expenditure - 2018 —E-N\FA%ZH 5,119,757 2,311,659 482,983 7,914,399



10.1 Analysis of Institutional Support - Operating Expenses XE§iBIIRISELEZ 2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB¥F7t5lR)
The Group The University
REBELES RE
2019 2018 2019 2018
Management and General EBN—IREIE
General Insurance — iR E 7,447 6,351 7,447 6,351
Auditor's Remuneration, Legal ZEIEMEH & ~ IREN 3,304 2,867 2,361 2,699
and Other Professional Fees HERHER
Other Operating Expenses HithR&px 65,618 76,199 65,953 76,514
76,369 85,417 75,761 85,564
Premises and Related Expenses BFENEHERH
Repair and Maintenance HAE R RE 176,151 147,145 173,982 133,558
Utilities KERERE 108,465 108,781 108,465 108,781
Government Rent and Rates 7= Ry i 69,811 65,187 69,604 64,958
Security, Environment and Safety RE - RIENEZEEH 4,423 3,706 3,664 2,990
Services
Property Insurance ZEREE R 1,852 2,343 1,841 2,332
Other Operating Expenses HAthE &% 298 109 - -
361,000 327,271 357,556 312,619
Student and General Education B4 N—RHEES
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries &% « RERMEBE 176,240 166,631 152,951 143,394
Resident Halls Expenses BYEER% 58,925 62,959 58,699 62,608
Student Exchange Programme B et 19,760 12,684 19,790 12,653
Careers, Counseling Services and B3 - BRI MELE 52,649 39,553 56,199 40,570
Student Activities FRINEEN
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities B4 /ERINEEN 6,092 6,028 - -
Alumni Affairs KRR B4R EEFE 6,271 3,907 6,271 3,909
Sports and Other Facilities =P N A=K iy 2,561 3,449 2,533 3,430
Student Financial Aids B E 12 552 - -
Student and Staff Health Services B4 N3 S R EARTE 6,626 5,721 6,624 5,714
Other Operating Expenses HithiR&px 6,998 5,125 1,353 600
336,134 306,609 304,420 272,878
Other Activities HAhEE
University Press RE k%L 7,293 3,555 7,293 3,557
Catering Services ERARFE 3,084 2,771 3,084 2,771
Souvenir Counter EmER 372 128 372 144
Miscellaneous HIESZH 2,193 2,832 (220) 182
12,942 9,286 10,529 6,654
786,445 728,583 748,266 677,715

Note: $5,933,528 (2018: $5,467,630) was spent on the . CARE Programme which was included in the Student

and General Education Services.

L]

'I.E|I:IF

BE+ARBtFAE=1T) -

BEN—RAESHAEAENREEINMXINAEA T =B=FTAE =+ \R(CE-—N\F &
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10.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff SHE T

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$1,800,000 during the years ended
30 June 2019 and 2018, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:

FEFEEREFERASEREZ M FHEBEE—BNTERNETABRUSERIINT :

The Group The University
REBEERE R
2019 2018 2019 2018
$ $

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 92 90 92 90
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 101 92 99 92
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 71 64 68 62
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 52 43 51 43
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 35 32 35 31
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 19 14 18 14
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 10 11 10 11
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 17 11 15 11
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 9 7 9 7
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 10 14 10 13
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 10 3 9 3
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 7 4 7 4
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 2 4 2 4
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 2 5 2 5
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 5 7 5 7
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 6 5 6 5
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 4 - 4 -
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 3 1 3 1
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 - 2 - 2
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 2 9 2 9
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 7 8 7 8
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 6 1 6 1
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 3 3 3 3
5,250,001 - 5,400,000 3 2 3 2
5,400,001 - 5,550,000 1 - 1 -
5,550,001 - 5,700,000 2 2 2 2
5,700,001 - 5,850,000 1 - 1 -
5,850,001 - 6,000,000 1 1 1 1
6,000,001 - 6,150,000 - - - -
6,150,001 - 6,300,000 1 - 1 -
Total Y _482 435 4712 _431
No. of clinical staff members
(included in the total figure above)
RAREEASHE (BER LEHTF) 111 11 1M 111

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, education allowances,
contract-end gratuities and other allowances.
FEEFE - RIKEHR - BEEF - TR - QiR R EthiE8h -



11. RESTRICTED FUNDS SHES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TTHIR)

The Group
REER

Capital
Funds

HEEE HrEs

Research  Others Investments Investments
Project (Note 11.1)Revaluation Revaluation
Funds Reserve Reserve
(Recycling) (Non-Recycling)
MEER Hit IEEIRE FoEOoikE
B (s 11.1) EfbRE SR

Balance - 1 July 2017 “ES—tFtH—H 2,766,069
Transfers fromy(to) the BE/(@)2EKxR 753,108
Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

654,192 8,336,804 199,824 - 15,872,090

293,564 537,665 394 - 1,556,876

(15,407)  (124,262) 7,570

Inter-fund Transfer BEEfER 3,846
Balance - 30 June 2018 —Z-N\FAXA=1+A 3,523,023
(Note) feR (BigsE)

Impact on initial application BRSBTS

932,349 8,750,207 207,788 - 17,533,633

- 18,366 (207,788) 193,294

of HKFRS 9 RS HERISEIIRHIRS
Adjusted balance —F-NFtA—H 3,523,023
-1 July 2018 EEEER
Transfers from/(to) the BE/(@)2EER 1,873,388
Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

932,349 8,768,573 - 193,294 17,540,954

288,829 (1,416,766) - (11,730) 1,210,618

(118,899) 396,430 - -

Inter-fund Transfer HEmEER 16,830
Balance - 30 June 2019 —B-hFAA=1+H 5413241
#eR

1,102,279 7,748,237 - 181,564 18,842,808

Note: The Group and the University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition

method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

MizE: ARBERRABRTZS-N\FtA—BVLER (FEMBEREED) FoRRE161% - RIBFMEZENBIESE -

LLEERAWET - RHIEE2.3 ©
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11. RESTRICTED FUNDS SHEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(Continued £8)
(AT TTHIR)

The University

RE
Capital Endowment Building Research Others Total
Funds Funds Funds Project (Note 11.2)
Funds
BHEIEEH WRIER Hith
BEES BEEE BEE g (PfifsE 11.2) iz

Balance - 1 July 2017 “E—tHtHA—H 2,361,337 3,523,615 147,140 654,192 7,604,578 14,290,862
Transfers from/(to) the #BE/(E)Z2ERER 133,956 10,005 (47,872) 293,564 1,172,953 1,562,606

Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer BEE/ZEIR - 130,222 115,247 (15,407)  (125,395) 104,667
Balance - 30 June 2018 —S-NEAXA=1+H 2,495,293 3,663,842 214,515 932,349 8,652,136 15,958,135

(Note) feh (BdsE)
Impact on initial application BRBENE B - - - - 7,321 7,321

of HKFRS 9 REHERIERHIRIE

Adjusted balance —E-NEtHA—H 2,495,293 3,663,842 214,515 932,349 8,659,457 15,965,456

-1 July 2018 RN
Transfers (to)/from the B(ZE) /B2EiER  (31,817) 452,949 13,856 288,829 552,592 1,276,409

Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer BEEEZER - (204,334) 4,015  (118,899) 410,454 91,236
Balance - 30 June 2019 —ES—-hFEAA=1+H 2,463,476 3,912,457 232,386 1,102,279 9,622,503 17,333,101

&k

Note: (1) The University have initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition

method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.3.

(2) $3,453 million has been set aside as long-term endowment capital.

FfitaE:
% o LEBRERIRIRES - RMiEE2.3 -

(2) EREETHN=1TNERAT=E8THABLEENELRSE -

(1) REBERBLAEBRZ2-N\FLtHE—BVSER (BEMBREER) FFRE161F - REFMEZNAET



11.1 The Group KERE

(i)

As at 30 June 2019, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $692 million (2018: $718
million). The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College
by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration
of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was outside the precincts of the University and, since
1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the
Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts and subject to the same terms and conditions
on which the land gift was then held.

BETTS-AFRA=TAH  AttESOEEERESAEATIEERT CT—N\E: tE—TFN\E&ET) - &
EREZFEESRPAEIRERAR - ETERLZDoctors StewartKJulia KunkleTBEE 4R REB R L ih -
ERERSRNIMARAZEESI - B—NEtAFE  REFEPXABROATRBEBEAERSEZEE
BRI PR BRI AR SR U R A RIRR R - BERERRKESR -

The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $789 million (2018: $774 million) as disclosed in note 7.

REEEEMNI  BRESFAESMNEITOERBRELRERESEZ tRNATAEERT CF—NE : tfi
tTEEERT) FREL @ RBRIERZ AT EFHFIRMHEETR -

11.2 The University K&

The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $764 million (2018: $731 million) as disclosed in note 7.

FEEESMUI  BRESERESHHPRNEERBABRN@EZ tRATEERT CT—N\E : =
F—E8T) FEL @ RENIEMZ BT EFHFIRMEETA -
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NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS
Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
non-deferred funds.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by the Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others

Others comprise the unspent balance of funds
donated for the development of new colleges,
reserves generated from self-financed programmes,
ancillary services, scholarships and bursaries and
miscellaneous activities.

Investments Revaluation Reserve

Investment Revaluaton Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in fair value of FVOCI equity
securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in note 2.9.
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12. UGC FUNDS

PESEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BA#T5T517R)

The Group and the University
REEZRERKE

General and UGC

Development  Matching Total
Reserve Fund Grants
—MERRE ~ BE\8 g
RREE Ao BN E
Balance - 1 July 2017 —B—tFtRA—H&R 2,730,645 1,428,899 4,159,544
Transfers from the BEHEZEKZER 42,793 16,147 58,940
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer ESRCER (104.667) - (104,667)
Balance - 30 June 2018 —E-NFRA=tTHEK 2,668,771 1,445,046 4,113,817
and 1 July 2018 —E-NFtRA—B#%&8R
Transfers to the HEPEIER (152,668) (31,288) (183,956)
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEEZER (91,236) - (91,236)
Balance - 30 June 2019 —E-h&EFAR=1THEER 2,424,867 1,413,758 3,838,625
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(1

The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent funds carried over from
one funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and
new developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20%
of the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for
that funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—REEREHREEEREREREER=F)RBAMIEES —EREREABRETENRERNES - —
REBRFEHRESHRZERUANBEREZCEEUMHIE(HRAEZIEEMMERINNERIZ=TRIR - T
BHRENRORREABHEENEESE -

$419 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as long-term endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity. As at 30 June 2019, the balance of UGC Matching Grants - Endowment Fund of the Group
and the University is both $470 million.

HESHEHHHNETHEE—THLEERCHFEEREENELSE - MIFREMNRRIEE - SEEHIER
fi - EMRBELEAMSGEERE - REF—NEAB=1H » AERENASNHESEHHEEE - BLESH
EEESNEETET -



13.

N ,’M 0'.. 4
V=%
g

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RHEELIRIRE
(NBEETFT5IR) The University
KRE

2019

2018

Unlisted Shares, at cost JEETHRRID » A 611,257 610,257
As explained in note 1, except for CUHK Health Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Limited, CUHK Medical Centre
Charitable Foundation Limited and CUHK Medical Clinic Limited which have been consolidated into the Group’s
financial statements, the results of all other subsidiaries have not been consolidated into the Group’s financial

statements, owing to their financial insignificance to the Group:-

UNFEE 1 FRE8L - REL R A SN BSRIRBM R M FNRENBAEREMSUTEKR - RTEBEPXAZERE
BRAE]  EEPXABEZ2PLERAT)  FEPNABRBREZESESEERATIREEPIAZEBPOERATE]
ARSI R BERB IR ZI - ABERZUBERRICEEHEE A THIME QSR #EAR 5

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities
incorporation FRatEtgst s
and operation
sSmmEIcRk by the University by a subsidiary
NERTE IR B, HABRE HWEBLSRE IERH
The Chinese University of  Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation s FitEE encourage public participation in
Limited public services
BEPXKREBEEE B BHE - (BENERITELAR
BRAE) SHNHER
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * &E and investment holding
MBREARFAERAE] RIS RIS ER
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
EEHERAE & charitable and educational in
nature
R{EERHEEENRTE
HKIX Hong Kong Limited * British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands BEER
RBERHE
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited a8 R B BB AR AR TS
BEERE RO
BIRAE]
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
thARDEERIFZFRAE] &E Hong Kong
TEEEEEDE
The Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong Note To develop an internationally
Biotechnology Limited &H FitzE recognised biotechnology
EEEYRRARER industry in Hong Kong
BRAT) EEEZRERBUMNEYRIE
I
IBSOmed Bioscience Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services and

ERRIRBRAT &asE

manufacture products related to
biotechnology

TR BA A 1) 7 B AR R RO AR S M
MBS
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Place of
incorporation
and operation

Name of company Percentage of equity held

FRrEffmitE

by the University by a subsidiary
HASKHE HMBASEE

FEM IR

yNCIEE AR

Principal activities

ELE S

B AHRZERGRIINEMRAS] * The People’s
Republic
of China
PEAR

HHIEE

100%

Asia Diabetes Foundation Hong Kong Note
Limited * g E

The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note
Hong Kong (Shenzhen) &t PEE
Foundation Limited

BEDXARB(RINEES
BIRAE]

CUHK Health Limited Hong Kong
BEPABEEHRRAS aE

100%

CUHK Medical Centre Limited Honégong 100%

BEPIAEBES D
BIRAE]

To carry out research, technology
transfer and related technical
services on advanced technology,
provide consulting service
on international technology
development, and manage
owned properties
SRR S « B ARG
iR7 - BIFRFHRIE B - BEY
FESmER

To organise activities and
research regarding diabetes on
a non-profit making basis
DAIEEFIIFiZ 20 4B 4 RR S W PR IS DR
BN

To sponsor, develop, promote and
encourage public participation in
public services

Eh - BE - BENBRITEAR
SHNHERE

To develop and manage medical
centres to provide high-quality
healthcare services and support
for teaching, research, and
clinical activities undertaken by
the Faculty of Medicine of CUHK
in furtherance of the educational
objective and aspiration of CUHK
ZREBEPORHEBEEER
7 Mg —SHEHFBPIAE
BERNHE - ARAEMEERE
mE)  UMEREEDPXAKZREH
HIKERNEIE

To provide high quality private
healthcare services to support
sustainable development of
medical and health services
in Hong Kong, to strengthen
the training of healthcare
professionals and facilitate
application of research results
and clinical service innovations
through the operation of a private
teaching hospital
EEEEPNABERUEES
AR ERFINTTHERE - 155
HZEEEE A B NI SRR R
=t -Ysbr



Place of
incorporation
and operation

G DAY
ped—yick

Name of company

yNSIE=E

Percentage of equity held
FratgmitE

by the University by a subsidiary
HASRE HMBAERE

Principal activities

FERE

CUHK Medical Centre
Charitable Foundation
Limited

EREPIAEEBREZZESE
BREAE]

Hong Kong
'BE

CUHK Medical Clinic
Limited

EHEDIIABEEDIN
BIRAE

Hong Kong
aE

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.

Note
Pt

100%

*  EENTMERBELIIFHESHSMSHEMAas -
Note: These companies are limited by guarantee without share capital.
MizE: SLEASRERBMAT » WEHEMER -

To provide financial assistance
to needy patients for receiving
adequate medical treatment
offered by the CUHK’s group of
private hospital and/or clinic, to
organise activities of a charitable
nature for public benefit that
promotes health and offers
learning opportunity for the
purpose of advancing education,
innovation and treatment in the
medical field
SBMHE#ABA RSB R
 BEPATEEEPXKRBETH
FhARER PR/ EF LS EETIN
BERE - WEMKEREEEE
ERELIEHEFNEININE - 12
ABREEENNE © BIFAEE
PR E= /N

To provide medical clinic services
to facilitate the operations of
the CUHK Medical Centre, to
facilitate application of research
results and training of healthcare
professionals, and to deliver high
quality ambulatory healthcare
services to the community at
transparent and affordable prices
RIEERIPZERER - UREE
BRNABEREE  (BERTH
BRAERRIER - EAIEREEA
& RUSEHAELEENESE
BT ABEENEER

71



72

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s and the University’s investment
properties were originated from building gifts and
stated at zero cost in the Group’s and the University’s
Statements of Financial Position respectively. For
disclosure purpose, the Group’s and the University’s
investment properties were revalued as at 30 June
2019 by independent firms of surveyors, Cushman
& Wakefield Limited for Hong Kong commercial
investment properties and Dudley Surveyors (Hong
Kong) Limited for Hong Kong residential investment
properties, both have appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties.

Pursuant to the surveyors’ valuations, the
Group’s and the University’s recurring fair value
measurements categorised into Level 3 for the
Hong Kong commercial investment properties at
the end of the reporting period were approximately
$30.0 million (2018: $29.0 million). The Group’s and
the University’s recurring fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3 for Hong Kong residential
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period were approximately $230.0 million and
$nil respectively (2018: $221.2 million and $nil
respectively).

Such fair value measurement of the Group’s and the
University’s investment properties fall under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, as it uses
significant unobservable inputs. The valuation meth-
odology for 2019 remains the same as prior year.

14. EE

ARBEENABHREYREEMREE - AT
BADRRAGERABHBRRR - BRINER
R RERERABNIREMRR =T —NFRA
=THZABBUIASERAMASRRIRE
BURBEBNERIIEYEMEN TSN (ES)
ARABBUREBENTEIREYFRIFLMEE -

RIBAGTEINEE - RARBEMNESERE=FR
RABEBELABNUREENBRIREMEN
REAREBEFERTMBFEFELEHHNE=
FBRT CTB-N\F: ZFhEERT) - BonE
B EDEF=FRIABEBNABNLURE
BREEREVENBELABEMERTHK
FEAERANHNA-R=TEIAST (ZF—
NE: FAHBR=REF—B=+TERTATR) -

REEEMEREFE 13K "TAREBEFE. A
REN=FLREESFR FAEAERFETHRE
HiE RBEERABNRENFIRE=FRME
B ZF-NFENGEHEELFEMER -



15. FIXED ASSETS ElE&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TIHIR)
The Group
REERE
Equipment,

Construction Furniture Art
(Note PfizE) in and Fittings Collection
Land  Buildings Progress #fi %8  Bilf Total
tith EE THEEIR PSE:] E-An Lt
Cost 27
At 1 July 2018 —F—N\F 452,009 7,450,794 1,451,948 3,870,624 24,061 13,249,436
tH—R#&8R
Additions 1=h0 - 105,042 1,906,485 295,660 163 2,307,350
Transfer iR - 487,436 (487,436) - - -
Disposals e - - ~ (109,079) - (109,079)
At 30 June 2019 —E-hE
ANB=1TBH#&8R 452,009 8,043,272 2,870,997 4,057,205 24,224 15,447,707
Accumulated Depreciation REITE
At 1 July 2018 —_FNF 114,575 2,754,339 - 3,249,906 - 6,118,820
tHA—RB#&eR
Charge for the Year TR 11,636 188,478 - 287,173 - 487,287
Written Back on Disposal HEREIE - - - (105,594) - (105,594)
At 30 June 2019 -y =3
NB=1BH#&es 126,211 2,942,817 - 3,431,485 - 6,500,513
Net Book Value at —8-hFRA=1H
30 June 2019 BREBE 325,798 5,100,455 2,870,997 625720 24,224 8,947,194
Cost 5723
At 1 July 2017 B+ 336,848 7,407,983 442,798 3,692,200 23,827 11,903,656
tH—R#&8R
Additions i 115,161 42,811 1,009,150 264,750 254 1,432,126
Disposals HE - - - (86,326) (20)  (86,346)
At 30 June 2018 —_E|;—NEF
~B=+H#8s 452,009 7,450,794 1,451,948 3,870,624 24,061 13,249,436
Accumulated Depreciation RTEITE
At 1 July 2017 T+ 104,891 2,570,164 - 3,043,551 - 5,718,606
tHA—RB#%e
Charge for the Year ;ﬁ%gﬁ 9,684 184,175 - 292,095 - 485,954
Written Back on Disposal HEREIE - - - (85,740) - _ (85,740)
At 30 June 2018 —FN\F
~B=+\uss 114,575 2,754,339 - 3,249,906 - 6,118,820
Net Book Value at —8-NFXA=1H
30 June 2018 EESE 337,434 4,696,455 1,451,948 620,718 24,061 7,130,616
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Government for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

Bif5E: -
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15. FIXED ASSETS EIEZEZE (Continued 4)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZB#ETFTTHIR)

The University
RE
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note FfizE) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress 3%fi %8  iif Total
Tt EE EETRE IR Y m iBgE
Cost 2%
At 1 July 2018 —FN\=E 452,009 7,372,515 494,860 3,858,009 20,536 12,197,929
tHA—B#eR
Additions 1 - 105,042 6,774 287,292 163 399,271
Transfer iR - 487,436 (487,436) - - -
Disposals HE - - - (108,993) - (108,993)
At 30 June 2019 “F-hE
ANE=1H#&8 452,009 7,964,993 14,198 4,036,308 20,699 12,488,207
Accumulated Depreciation RIS
At 1 July 2018 - NF 114,575 2,741,467 - 3,239,001 - 6,095,043
tHA—R#&
Charge for the Year IrEEEE 11,636 186,495 - 285,718 - 483,849
Written Back on Disposal HER B - - - (105,508) - (105,508)
At 30 June 2019 -y =3
ANB=1TH#& 126,211 2,927,962 - 3,419,211 - 6,473,384
Net Book Value at —E-h&FKB=1H
30 June 2019 IRmEE 325,798 5,037,031 14,198 617,097 20,699 6,014,823
Cost 2723
At 1 July 2017 —F—tF 336,848 7,329,704 111,088 3,679,765 20,302 11,477,707
tHA—R#4&R
Additions 1 115,161 42,811 383,772 264,159 254 806,157
Disposals HE - - - (85,915) (20)  (85,935)
At 30 June 2018 —_EN=
NB=1H#R 452,009 7,372,515 494,860 3,858,009 20,536 12,197,929
Accumulated Depreciation RTEiFE
At 1 July 2017 st 104,891 2,559,274 - 3,033,224 - 5,697,389
tH—R#e
Charge for the Year TEEEE 9,684 182,193 - 291,106 - 482,983
Written Back on Disposal ~ H&&E#% - - - (85,329) - (85,329)
At 30 June 2018 —FN\=E
NBA=1TH&&E 114,575 2,741,467 - 3,239,001 - 6,095,043

Net Book Value at
30 June 2018 IREFE

Note:

=
E{I-IF

—2-N\FXA=1+H

337,434 4,631,048 494,860

619,008 20,536 6,102,886

- Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.
- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Government for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

- TEESERSETHERAL -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS EREE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAZE#ETFTTHITR)

The Group
KREREERS
Development
Costs
EER %Y
Cost 5% 3
At 1 July 2017, “F—tFtH—H- -
30 June 2018 “E-N&EXA=1H
and 1 July 2018 A_TF—NFtRA—B#ER
Additions = 17,394
At 30 June 2019 = B Say = iy o = 2 17,394
Accumulated Amortisation EiEiEy
At 1 July 2017, “F—t&tHA—H- -
30 June 2018 - N\%;xA=1H
and 1 July 2018 A —-NFtA—B#eR
Charge for the Year 5ok -
At 30 June 2019 “E-hENRA=1H#ER - -
Net Book Value at —E-h&FKXA=1H 17 304
30 June 2019 BEEPE £

Net Book Value at
30 June 2018

=B-NFXA=1+H
IR FE

The University
RE2

Development
Costs

FEEEI%:
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17. INVESTMENTS

Ed =

76

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZE#ETFTTHITR)
17.1 Non-Current Investments JERENEHE The Group The University
REERE RE
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
—FT-hEFE IB-N\E T-NF F-hEF ZF-N\EFE B-N\E
A~NB=t+H +tHA—H RA=+H ~B=+H +tA—H A~BA=+H
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities REZFHAERSES
Unlisted JEEm B - 1,206,586 - - 1,205,582
Listed lalys]
Hong Kong &E - - 1,092,194 - - 940,172
Overseas =38 - - 643,246 - - 643,246
- - 2,942,026 - - 2,789,000
Financial Assets measured at ISR AR E
Amortised Cost ERIEE
Unlisted JELTE 1,198,678 1,206,586 - 1,198,678 1,205,582 -
Listed I
Hong Kong &aE 741,682 1,092,194 - 741,682 940,172 -
Overseas Bk 630,344 643,246 - 630,344 643,246 -
2,570,704 2,942,026 - 2,570,704 2,789,000 -
Available-for-sale Securities (Note 1) T[{itHe&EsE% (HizH1)
Unlisted Equity Securities, JE ETHREANEESS
at Cost EE{RTIN - - 1 - - 1
Equity Securities Listed in BB LRSS
Hong Kong, at Fair Value BAREE - - 258,620 - - -
Unit Trusts Listed in HE LHEMER
Hong Kong, at Fair Value BE  RAorEE - - 5,395 - - -
- - 264,016 - - 1
Equity Securities designated at EiRHEMEEEEIED
FVOCI (non-recycling) RETENTHEE 220,344 231,965 - - - -
Financial Assets measured ERiRsRORE
at FVPL AIENERIEE
Unlisted Equity Securities JEFRREA RS 7,930 7,322 - 7,930 7,322 -
Equity Securities Listed in &8 LhRAEE
Hong Kong 619 579 - - - -
Unit Trusts Listed in &g FhEER{ERE
Hong Kong B2 2,735 2,764 - - - -
Limited Partnership Investments [RESBIsE 2,001,276 1,917,891 1,917,891 2,001,276 1,917,891 1,917,891
(Note 2) (PtEE2)
Alternative Investments SEELE 598,149 461,035 461,035 598,149 461,035 461,035
(Note 3) (MdEE3)
2,610,709 2,389,591 2,378,926 2,607,355 2,386,248 2,378,926
Investments in Unconsolidated s SHEAS
Subsidiaries, at Cost HIs » JRAA 110,257 110,257 110,257 - - -
Non-Current Investments SEREEE 5512,014 5,673,839 5695225 5,178,059 5175248 5167,927



Note:(1) Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to financial assets measured at FVPL and financial assets
measured at FVOCI upon initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018 (see note 2.3 (i)).

(2) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships
and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns by
investing in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships across a broad range of marketable
and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and privately held securities. All applicable
lock-up periods of the main limited partnership ended on or before 31 December 2011. The University
may withdraw all or any part of its Capital Account by giving the General Partner of the partnership written
advance notice of not less than one year prior to withdrawal.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as limited partners of two limited partnerships.
These limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective investment opportunities formerly held
by limited partners of other limited partnerships who have been forced to sell in the market at substantial
discounts their high-quality limited partnership interests in private equity, distressed credit, real estate,
natural resources, etc. The capital commitments will be drawn upon request from the General Partner.
The University’s original commitments of these two limited partnerships were approximately US$14.9
million and US$2.25 million respectively. As at 30 June 2019, the University has paid US$11.8 million and
US$2.0 million respectively to these two limited partnerships (2018: US$11.8 million and US$2.0 million).

In July 2017 and January 2018, the University joined as limited partners of six new limited partnerships.
These limited partnerships were set up to invest in four different classes of private asset funds. The capital
commitments will be drawn upon request from the General Partner. The University’s total commitments
were approximately US$30.9 million. As at 30 June 2019, the University has paid US$13.5 million to these
six limited partnerships.

(3) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged and managed by an investment
consultant in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds
and limited partnership. The University intends to hold these alternative investments for long-term purposes.

Mzt (VREB-NFtA—BERERA ( FEMBREEN) FoF - BoUMtHESNEESHEA S REBERRAR
EfENEREERBBRMZEKSRANEFENEREE (RWFE230) -

(2) REZRESBASHHNRARER=FERESBEEZHALAEETIR - XEFBRBEBLFIRERE -
REENREGENRERTSTAFLARK - BERERENRENEARFEEZESNON - CHIREIERE
EEEES  THEERPFNEUSEERNSBIREASEEES  HOTEREAREERAAARENES -
FrEREEBEENREHEHER="F—F+"A=1t—HER - AEIUFRL—FUSEHEMESBARN
ERRFPEHANZENER -

ARENBRIRZFFNFLARFT—FF_ARERNMERSSHIER - EMEAREGHEEIRRERRS
BeiEEEMNHMRESRIER - BEXRESBERZHRTNRESBANEERTISEEERMA U LR
HWREERIER - GEREGHEBRESELERE - BEEREE - BHE - RAERS - REXRBELRE
REBABERFZT - KRERYFMRENBBEERSNRS—TEHEATERAA =B tHERT - #E"F—
NERA=TA  RESRKRET —F-ENTERTA-EBEETNEMEAREEBEE CF—N\F: —F
—BN\+EBERTA=EERET) -

AREZIRZF—LFLARTF—N\F-ARENNERSESRIEE - ENERSEGBRERETERERNES

EMAEEE - RERBERNENREBAERESZT - KERVIMRENZRBERA=TLEESRT -H#E_T
—hERB=1H  REBRET —T=8RTEXTRENARSEBIER -

(3) FEREN—MXENIREBREABRELER - @EHES AEREREESNRESBIRES - KSR
BRI ERERERE -
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17. INVESTMENTS "E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17.2 Current Investments RENIRE

(Continued £8&)

(BT THIR)

The Group
REER

The University

REB

30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018 30 June 2019

1 July 2018 30 June 2018

—FhFE Zs-NEFE F-N\& F-hEF ZF-N\E T-N&E
~A=+tH +tB—H A=t+H »~A=t+H +tHB—H *HA=tH
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, %8 ZEIHAES:ES -
Amount Matured Within One Year —&RAEIEA
Unlisted LT ) - 237,084 - - 237,084
Listed gyl
Hong Kong &E - - 33,446 - - -
Overseas Bt - - 374,419 - - 374,419
- - 644,949 - - 611,503
Financial Assets measured at  IZiBIHRAETE
Amortised Cost, ERIEE -
Amount Matured Within One Year —FAEIHEA
Unlisted JELTE 346,402 237,084 - 346,402 237,084 -
Listed fuiy ]
Hong Kong B 177,686 33,446 - 177,686 . .
Overseas =g/ 36,403 374,419 - 36,403 374,419 -
560,491 644,949 - 560,491 611,503 -
Financial Assets measured ERHMEmKEES
at FVPL AEFENSRIEE
Debt Securities (EREEEES
Unlisted JELTE 167,053 272,726 272,726 158,164 272,726 272,726
Listed +m
Hong Kong &HE 24,243 ) ) i ) )
Overseas pisg]3 135,160 - - ' ) -
326,456 272,726 272,726 158,164 272,726 272,726
Equity Securities BAsES
Listed iyl
Hong Kong &E 350,393 347,471 321,395 86,974 88,089 88,089
Overseas 59 1,384,732 1,138,741 1,138,741 1,348,860 1,103,086 1,103,086
1,735,125 1,486,212 1,460,136 1,435,834 1,191,175 1,191,175
Unit Trusts BhEAES
Unlisted JELET 692,099 790,220 790,220 689,211 787,709 787,709
Listed iy 7]
Hong Kong 5 594,353 593,831 591,200 523,423 522,403 522,403
Overseas B3N 112,783 142,673 142,673 107,660 137,092 137,092
1,399,235 1,526,724 1,524,093 1,320,294 1,447,204 1,447,204
3,460,816 3,285,662 3,256,955 2,914,292 2,911,105 2,911,105
Current Investments mEnsE

4,021,307

3,930,611

3,901,904

3,474,783

3,522,608 3,522,608



Total Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :
N EEHNEERE(EEFRRRERE)

The Group The University
REER RE
2019 2018 2019 2018
At amortised cost RS 3,131,195 3,586,975 3,131,195 3,400,503
At fair value rAoREE 3,167,381 3,532,784 3,167,381 3,346,312

Note:(4) Cash balance held by the external investment managers of $57 million (2018: $143 million) for investment

purpose was included in the Group’s and the University’s Debt Securities.

Mzt (4) SMBRELEBENATLERR (ZF—/\F  —GET=881) ARKREENCRERAESTENSER

RARBHEEESD -
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18. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSETS

ESEAEFEE

18.1 Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets FEFEHFEIRESERNENEE

The University operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”) and a MPF-exempted ORSO
scheme that is subject to Hong Kong ORSO and MPF (Exemption) regulations. Since the establishment of
a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members. An actuarial
valuation of the Scheme is conducted every 3 years by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, the appointed actuary
to the Scheme. This defined benefit scheme exposes the University to actuarial risks such as interest rate
risk, salary risk and investment risk. The information about the TGS Scheme is summarised as below:

REERB(RERBZIFOIES R H—E R ER =

AT - B " EEPRE(R)ERZ IR ES LRI EETE

o ERTEIRIRBRESESRNGTBIRGIEER - hERRFIMABEEFE(EHR)ROT - ERESHENHERNGE - 8
WA EAR—FTTFTFTA—HMIIE - WRENRECTBERZTME - EFRENSTEINBEMLE -

EE=FHXM(EE)BRAEET -
FIEETEIMERBELNT

BIBERE - AEEHBEEAER - IR « FEIEMALE R - ERE

(i) The amount of net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:

FAESIR AR AR B ERANF ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AZE#TFTHIR)
The Group and the University
REEENKE
2019 2018
Present Value of Funded Obligations TEEEZIRE (44,936) (46,647)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FElEECARER 52,965 56,166
Net Assets FEE 8,029 9,519

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future
reductions in contributions will also relate to future services rendered, future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The University is expected to pay $131,000 contribution to the Scheme for the

financial year 2019/20.

B L EESTRRR AR+ ZEAAKE - BRRASHHERSEBEMCEARNBEMEN - FIIHRESE
HNERTS - FERSRNTISRIZEE - ALER LR EFEE —FA TRONEESRIIER - KEFEPER="F—
NEZFFUBFED - SBEERMA =BT MR -



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Scheme assets allocation:
FEIEES -
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHlIR)
The Group and the University

REER NS
2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
=8 [=§:474 k-l Bt
Bonds &% 24,863 47 30,473 54
Cash and Bank Deposits REMIRITEMR 28,102 53 25,693 46

52,965 100 56,166 100

All bonds held under the TGS Scheme have credit ratings of Baa2 or higher.
FrEREREN GBI T HBEZAEYESBaa2 iRE A LSRR -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations (‘DBO”):
AEMNHFERENED
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AE#F7T5I7R)
The Group and the University

REEBERAE
2019 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FH4EER 46,647 54,129
Benefits paid by the Scheme FrEIE R (4,743) (7,116)
Current Service Cost IRERIEAAS 327 448
Interest Cost MEmZ 827 522
Remeasurements recognised SHEtERER 1,878 (1,336
3,032 (366)
Balance - End of Year FIRGERR 44,936 46,647

Changes in fair value of scheme assets:
FEIREEC AT EREE)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#&#F7t5I7R)
The Group and the University

REERRARE

2019 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FH4ERR 56,166 61,541
Contributions paid to the Scheme AETENEL 2 HF 352 425
Benefits paid by the Scheme HEIE Rz (4,743) (7,116)
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest FHEIEE Z R (FISWA 159 710

income) RS

Interest Income FMBWA 1,031 606
Balance - End of Year FHREERR 52,965 56,166
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(v)

Expenses/(Income) recognised in Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
and Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure are as follows:

EREEHNERAEE S RAER ZHBEMNT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 7T5R)
The Group and the University

REERENAE
2019 2018

Current service cost IRERIEAAS 327 448
Interest cost on DBO REMNBTEIZA B 827 522
Interest Income on Scheme Assets FEIEEZFSWA (1,031) (606
Net Expenses recognised in the Statements of REEWZFRERZFEZH 123 364

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions BEAORRENTE - 21
Effect of changes in financial assumptions B EESREF L 1,075 (1,695
Effect of experience adjustments BRI 803 338
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest HEIEEZEERFI2WA (159) (710

income) BRI
Total remeasurements recognised in REMPEIESESEZ 1,719 (2,046)

Other Comprehensive Income HWEHE
Total defined benefit cost/(income) recognised R EFIZEEAS/ (WA ) ER 1,842 (1,682)

Changes in net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:
EMBRRRAERCFEELENEE :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A#&#FIT5I7R)

The Group and the University

REEENKE
2019 2018

Balance - Beginning of Year TR 9,519 7,412
Contributions paid to the Scheme FTEIETHE 352 425
Net expenses on Scheme benefit recognised  REEUZRERZFEF & (123) (364)

in the Statements of Comprehensive Income BXRH

and Expenditure
Total remeasurements recognised in REhZEWEHERZ (1,719) 2,046

Other Comprehensive Income WEHE
Balance - End of Year FERR 8,029 9,519

The net expense/income was recognised in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

FH/WARZEANSZRPNEER—REIERNE THM BN PR -



(vii)  Significant actuarial assumptions:
FERERR -

2019 2018
0, 0,
Weighted-average assumptions to determine FMETERZSSEZINER (%pa,) (% pa)
benefit obligations IR
Discount rate BRIRER 1.50 2.10
Rate of salary increase FEZIBRE 4.30 4.00
Weighted-average assumptions to determine FAGTEREF IR AS 2
defined benefit cost TR
Discount rate BRIRZE 210 1.10
Rate of salary increase HECERR 4.00 3.50
(viii) Sensitivity analysis on DBO:
RENBEEZBRERN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)

At 30 June 2019

DBO will become Increase/(Decrease) by

Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

BRIRE
WP502EF
@508 F

HFEZIBRE
HLB08F
15 02LF

BRIRZR
HWAB08T
1Em508F

HFEZIBRE
HAB08T
1Em50%8F

R=ET—NFRB=1H & / (R2)
REMNDEEHE
45,790 854  1.90%
44,127 (809)  (1.80%)
44,740 (196)  (0.44%)
45,142 206  0.46%
At 30 June 2018

DBO will become

Increase/(Decrease) by

R=T—N\FEXA=*1H 1#&m / (R
SEMNSEEHE
47,576 929  1.99%
45,766 (881) (1.89%)
46,454 (193)  (0.41%)
46,850 203 0.44%
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(ix) Description of funding arrangements and funding policy that affect future contributions:

FERRURNE S LA E S BEREHA -

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule. At each funding valuation, the contribution rate
for the following three years is set. The last funding valuation was of 30 June 2017 and it was assessed at
that valuation that the University would contribute 10% of active members’ salary for the period from 1 July
2017 to 30 June 2020.

ZETBBE=FEMNE - RR=FNUREEBRESHERRTE - RENESHERAR=FS—tFA=1+A
HEZEEPREABA-S—tFtA—HE"SBF A=+ AR EERENFHFEE D THIMR -

(x) Maturity profile of DBO:
FEFREFEZEIL B I

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2019 is 3.8 years (2018: 4 years).
REFB-NFARB=THRENBZEEZMEFIFHAI8EF (TT—/\F 1 45) -

Projected benefit payments (undiscounted) taking into account estimated future employee service and salary growth
based on Actuary’s aforementioned assumptions are:

RIE DB R Z RIS TR (ERER B TRKEHBEMFZIER) AT :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAB¥ETF THT)

Beyond 5 years but
Within 5 years within 10 years Beyond 10 years
5 FA 5 Fi&{B10 R HBiE10F

Expected benefit payments FEHAFIZS {450

At 30 June 2019 R=F—h&FEA=1+H 33,224 5,528 11,072
At 30 June 2018 R=F—/N\F;xA=1+H 35,255 6,873 11,193

18.2 Defined Contribution Scheme SFEMFEE!

In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in note 18.1, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The 1995 Scheme is a MPF-exempted ORSO-
registered scheme. Employer contributions to these defined contribution schemes are as follows:

FREfEE 18. 1 FRiR MR EF &S] - ABBERTAHMESRE TMETENREMREE - IEEPIXABHES
AEEFE (—AAR) (T—RAAREE L ) REFIMATERETE ( TREERE ) - — AR EIRRESRINGTE
RGBT 5EM - AT 2R mfE R E HRET BIFREL A EE R -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)

The Group The University
ABER AR
2019 2018 2019 2018
The 1995 Scheme —hhAEE 151,617 152,093 150,826 151,300
The MPF Scheme wiEERtEl 171,839 156,213 169,113 154,088

Total Contributions HRALER 323,456 308,306 319,939 305,388



19. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES &HBEERSHEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZE#STFTT5ITR)

19.1 Contract Assets BHEE
The Group and the University
REBEZRERAKE
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
—FhE —F-N\F —FNF

A~A=*H +tB—H 0 AA=*H

Receivables from contracts with ~ SE7E “FEURBRFR - TEIT
customers within the scope of TR R EL YR thF
HKFRS 15, which are included B<EEBIIEREEN>>

in “Accounts Receivable, E151RKRBEES
Prepayments and Other HIEEIRIFEIER 28,975 40,262 -
Receivables” (note 20) (Bif=E 20) _ = =

(i) The Group and the University initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the
opening balance at 1 July 2018. Comparative information has not been restated.
REZELASZCRARBRELVSER (FEMBREELN) $1560% - WRZF—N\F-LHA—BFRPVIERE -
LR ERAKRET

19.2 Contract Liabilities &&&E o
The Group and the University

REERHGAE
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
—FT-hEF —FNE —FN\E
~H=1H tB—H ) ~B=1+H
Student Fees Received in Advance FEYZEE K EUIRE 514,328 472,841 -
Caution Money Received {RE 16,812 16,424 -

531,140 489,265 -

(i) The Group and the University initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the
opening balance at 1 July 2018. Comparative information has not been restated.
REZERAZCRARBTELVLRERA (FBMFREEA) $£160% - WRTTB—N\FLHA—BARIMERE -
LB ERAKRET -

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, these amounts were reclassified from “Accounts Payable and Accruals” (note
22) to Contract Liabilities.
B ( EEMHBEREED ) $£1515% 0 ZEEHECN "RORMREER, (M 22) SHoEAGHAERE -
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Movement in Contract Liabilities &#EBEHES)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAB#TF75517R)

The Group and the University

REEE AL
2019

Balance at 1 July 2018 “F-NFEtHB—B#%&8 489,265
Decrease in Contract Liabilities as a result of ~ EEMA F VISR EIERBUIA

recognising income that was included MmaINENa‘HD (477,541)

in the Contract Liabilities at the beginning

of the period
Increase in Contract Liabilities as a result of RAEEERFESERRTMS I S H 519,416

billing in advance of service aEgm
Balance at 30 June 2019 ZE-NFXRA=THAR 531,140



20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEURRRTR ~ T8 {HFRIE K FLfth FEUL TR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB¥F7t5lm)
The Group The University

Ko K
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
—F-hF ZB-N\F B-N\F T-hF ZFT-NF T-N\F
~B=t+H +tA—HB #»KB=t+H ~A=tH <tRA—H &KA=tH

Loan to Subsidiary BEMRFHEBAS 53,490 53,490 53,490 53,490 53,490 53,490
Other Loan Receivable HittEIEMR - 90 90 - - -
Accounts Receivable (note) FEURERTR (Pif5E) 1,122,945 735399 775661 1,112,878 725840 766,102
Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIBIRE ~ TRMAIENR 242,956 148,729 148,729 67,130 66,412 66,412
Other Receivables EfthFEUIR
Student Loans BLEmM 2,591 2,753 2,753 1,357 1,591 1,591
Current Accounts with Colleges ERERER - - - - 5,544 5,544
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Bfit S 2 SITE SR BRFR 3,612 10,153 10,153 32,767 24,711 24,711
Amount due from UGC HESERIEM 40,883 32,912 32,912 40,883 32,912 32,912

1,466,477 983,526 1,023,788 1,308,505 910,500 950,762
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts 78 : FEURBRFR ~ TAFFR

Receivable, Prepayments and TE R EL A FEMSTR
Other Receivables FERENER 1D 197,762 130,807 130,807 53,490 53,490 53,490

Current portion of Accounts Receivable, FEUERTR - TBITFRIE R
Prepayments and Other Receivables ~ EftEWFRRENERS 1,268,715 852,719 892,981 1,255,015 857,010 897,272

Note: As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the accounts receivable, for which the Group’s and the
University’s entitlement to the consideration was conditional on achieving certain milestones, are included in
contract assets and disclosed in note 19.1 (see note 2.3(ii)).

st ERERA ( FEMEMERER ) $F150F 0 ABEREQASBHDRRKERNENTSHERGA TESHESE 2%
IRAERARSNEE - WRHE19.11E GESRMEE2.3(i)

At 30 June 2019, Non-Current Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other Receivables included an unsecured
and interest-free loan of $53.49 million (2018: $53.49 million) to a subsidiary repayable in January 2021 and
prepayment for fixed assets and interest receivable from a government loan of $144.27 million (2018: $77.27
million) .

REFS-AFRA=THIERBEEERR - BTRELAEMBRREE-—EAT=a0+ &8 CF-N\F: AF=
BA+AER)EERRESNERTHBLAS]  ZERER"S_—F—BEE - NETEENRTRRBATERN
BEFHE—ROFtE-+tE8Ex CT—N\F : tFEtE=+t&R) -

Student loans are granted to local undergraduate and postgraduate students of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repayable by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation.
If the borrower ceases to be a student of the University, all loans will then be repayable immediately.
BLEMBENTEEPIXABNARNAZRRE AFNSIHELE - EOHEHEERTFEENUBRER/HZBER

TENE FREEEEEE ) DRESHNERE - IENBLEERYAREER - REBERZIETNIHRAIEE
B - NEEER THRLEBENGH - FREEREILEEE -

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of
repayment. Other than part of Student Loans, all of the other accounts receivable and prepayments are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

ERTIREREMBATEREMRDEIRT - RENBNEEERR - FREMPBEERI - BBIERRTFAEE—
FZAMEINERARZH
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21,

(a)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS B BR 7R BRES 2 4R

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period:

FRUER RN T ECERYERERIENBIF B - EEE HNIRE ST ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZE#ETFTTHITR)
The Group The University
REER RE

2019 2018 2019 2018
Current FREIHA 1,089,614 751,103 1,080,254 741,544
Less than 1 month past due PR—ER 12,328 11,514 11,621 11,514
1 to 3 months past due —EBE=EH 18,120 9,831 18,120 9,831
More than 3 months but within 12 =ERZE+ZHEH 2,344 2,344 2,344 2,344

months past due

More than 12 months past due +EBMUE 539 869 539 869
Amount past due B4 33,331 24,558 32,624 24,558
Total FEUTBRFR4EEE 1,122,945 775,661 1,112,878 766,102

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amounts are likely to be recoverable. No impairment
loss is provided for the year, as the result of applying the expected credit risk model is insignificant (2018: $nil).
AREBZRERAZRACRPNEETMBEE D - MRARBEEHEEERENE - EENRRAEERLEFEK -
Eit - FERAFEAFRREAERR CT-—N\F: FTx) -

CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS WITH BANKS  IRERIR{THEEAER
Cash and short-term deposits with banks comprise:
RENRITRBEMRERE :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAE&#F7t5I7R)
The Group The University
REREEED
2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash in Hand and with Banks and IRE - RIT A EAM 122,796 86,149 110,009 80,645
Other Financial Institutions B FEHABTERR
Time Deposits EHATER 15,160,680 14,202,50412,382,450 9,829,960
Cash and Deposits in the SRR RANIRE 15,283,476 14,288,65312,492,459 9,910,605
Statements of Financial Position NERITTERR
Less: Time Deposits with Original W FREEE=EH
Maturity over Three Months HIERATEER 14,069,094 13,948,703 12,040,496 9 639 208
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the HERERAMIRE
Cash Flow Statements FIREZEEY 1,214,382 339,950 451,963 271 397

Note: Time Deposits of $16 million (2018: $20 million) were pledged to secure two loans from the Government

(note 24(b)).

izt —FAREET (CB—N\F : ZFER)ZERERCER FERAERMERZER (fzE24(b)) -



Cash and Deposits with Banks included the following foreign currencies:
REMBTERNREESE - SETIIMNEEE:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars equivalent) (MAE#EETTHIT)
The Group The University
REER RE

2019 2018 2019 2018
Australian Dollars AUD BT 2,570 2,426 2,570 2,426
Euro EUR BATE 9 9 9 9
Pounds Sterling GBP Y 8,244 9,924 290 1,638
Renminbi RMB AR 1,276,392 881,549 1,268,788 863,851
Singapore Dollars SGD FhnKE T 69 69 - -
United States Dollars uUsD EYH 491,300 384,064 224,990 163,564
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(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

AEEREENEEHRE

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s and the University’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow statements as cash flows from financing
activities.

TRFALABEBLASZRENEETTNAGEES  SEREERELY - RETDELENIRKRNIREREAE
HERERERPAIELSRETIELENIRER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& #TF5T5lIR)

The Group

PAN-E=
Deferred Bank Loans  Secured Total
Capital for Loans
Funds ©On-Lending (note 24)
(note 26) to Staff

(note 24)

EEEE  HET HiEH Lt

2e  BWEX =6
(Mizx2e) SRITEF  (MiEE24)
(Ffizx24) 2019

Balance - Beginning of Year e 3,607,593 71000 3566976 7,245,569

Changes from Financing Cash Flows: RIEIREREED) :

Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds  EEEEEEZEYD (56,246) - - (56,246)
Bank Loans Obtained for On- WEETHEEZRT - 200,000 - 200,000
Lending to Staff £ ) i (4.000) (4,000)
Repayment of Secured Loans EEFIRIEEMN - (71,000) T (71:000)
Repayment of Bank Loans for EEEETHRREZ
On-Lending to Staff IRITEM
Other Changes: Hith&g)
Capitalised Borrowing Costs BN EERZ 140,311 140,311

Balance - End of Year IR 3,651,347 200,000 3,703,287 7,454,634



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT THIR)

The Group
REBELES
Deferred Bank Loans  Secured Total
Capital for Loans
Funds ©On-Lending (note 24)
(note 26) to Staff
(note 24)
EEEE H©ET BigH B
EE BHEZ e
(Mizxee) SRITEM  (FfEE24)
(PisE24) 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year 4Eae
g g FHEER 3,418,981 69,000 1,433,648 4,921,629
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: BlERERTEEE) :
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds IEEEEEEZIEM 188,612 - - 188,612
Proceeds from Loans and EMHERFAERE - - 2,218,000 2,218,000
Borrowings
Bank Loans Obtained for On- EBETHEE 2T } 7.000 } 7,000
Lending to Staff £
Repayment of Secured Loans EEBIRRER - - (6,274) (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for BEEETHREZ ) (5,000) } (5,000)
On-Lending to Staff IRITEM
Other Changes: FLth 8 :
Capitalised Borrowing Costs [ ESIE o223 - - 51,059 51,059
Borrowing Costs Offset by e S RS SR AR RO ) i 36,707 36,707
the Interest Earned from the EHRTZRR P EREXAIA
Corresponding Time Deposits SR
Transferred to Deferred Income WEIET W - - (166,164)  (166,164)
Balance - End of Year FHEER

3,607,593 71,000

3,566,976

7,245,569
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB#TFTHIT)
The University
RE
Deferred Bank Loans Secured Total
Capital for Loans
Funds On-Lending (note 24)
(note 26) to Staff
(note 24)
EEEE BfET HiEH o
2 BEEZ  gm
(izz2e) FTER - (gzpoq)
(PidzE24) 2019
Balance - Beginning of Year FEHEEER 3,607,593 71,000 20000 3,698,593
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: FiE&IRESRSET) !
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds  BEEEEES 7RI (56,246) - - (56,246)
Bank Loans Obtained for On- EEPHEE ZRIT - 200,000 - 200,000
Lending to Staff =6
Repayment of Secured Loans BEEIREE®R - - (4,000) (4,000)
Repayment of Bank Loans for BEEETHESY - (71,000) - (71,000)
On-Lending to Staff SRITEER
Balance - End of Year AR

3,551,347 200,000

16,000 3,767,347

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LA&#F7t517R)
The University
RE
Deferred Bank Loans Secured Total
Capital for Loans
Funds On-Lending (note 24)
(note 26) to Staff
(note 24)
EEEE BfET BigE B
B HHEAZ gy
(KisE26) RITEM (HiE24)
(FizE24) 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FH4EER 3418981 69000 26274 3,514,255
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: RERENELEY)
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds EEEEESZIEM 188,612 - - 188,612
Bank Loans Obtained for On- EEPHEE T ) 7,000 ) 7,000
Lending to Staff =E
Repayment of Secured Loans BETIETEEM - - (6,274)  (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for EEEETRHEEZ - (5,000) - (5,000)
On-Lending to Staff RITEM
Balance - End of Year FRiEER 3,607,593

71,000

20,000 3,698,593



22. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS FE(TERM R EFTEH
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZB#SFTTHIR)
The Group The University
REEE RE
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
—E-AE-B-\E —F-N\F —S-AE"S-\F “SN\F
AA=+H +B—HB 7~A=tH #B=t+A +tHA—HB 7»xB=tH
Student Fees Received in Advance (note)  FEURESEE R ELftER (FiEE) - - 42z - - 472,841
Accounts Payable FE(TERTR 377,937 286,675 286,675 180,250 204,486 204,486
Other Creditors and Accruals HE(TIRFUNMESTER 491,387 248938 248,938 114,485 88,346 88,346
Deposits & Caution Money Received (note) & RIFIS (it 111,253 172,190 188,614 111,253 172,190 188,614
Current Accounts with Colleges ERRERIRI - - - 207,918 190,530 190,530
Cumrent Accounts with Subsidiaries B AEHERIRTR 199,730 177,147 177,147 199,753 177,147 177,147

1,180,307 884,950 1,374,215 813,659 832,699 1,321,964

Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts i TR AERT

Payable and Accruals ERIEREmRELD 202,239 82,730 82,730 ) ) )
Current portion of Accounts FET IR FESTER

Payable and Accruals REnER

978,068 802,220 1,291,485 813,659 832,699 1,321,964

Note: As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, Student Fees Received in Advance and Caution Money Received are

FfitEE:

23.

included in contract liabilities and disclosed in note 19.2 (see note 2.3(ii)).
HRRMEBIMEREERSE151%  ARBEMEMKERRISCHASHER LM 19.2iKE FE2HMEE
2.3(ii)) °

The Group and the University will settle the accounts payable and loans according to payment due date. For
the remaining contractual maturities of the accounts payable, please refer to note 33.1(ii).

AREZRNASBSRBRELERIAE - MAEESE - BORFOFBRSHOTIE - FFSHEMEE33.10)

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidaries are unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of
repayment.

ERFRERLMEBLSEFRIERDEER - RELBEEEERR -

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ESEFEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZB#SFTT5IR)

The Group The University
RERELGES RE

2019 2018 2019 2018
Staff Leave Entitlements B EFRHATEF 548,930 510,509 545,088 507,340
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service wmMERRE 317461 225967 310,111 222,602

Payments R &
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions RIRGEF R 26,373 24,992 26,373 24,927
Salaries and Wages FENTE 18,552 18,717 18,123 18,328
911,316 780,185 899,695 773,197

Payable: FEfT -

Within 1 year R—ERN 670,712 532,585 665,031 528,237
After 1 year R—F% 240,604 247,600 234,664 244,960

911,316 780,185 899,695 773,197
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24.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS &

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZB¥ETFITHIT) The Group The University

REBER KE
2019 2018 2019 2018
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) & f&-F# Sz iR1TE M (Fizta)

Within One Year —FR 200,000 71,000 200,000 71,000
Secured Loans (Notes b and c) BB ER(FEEb Kc)
Within One Year —&ERQ 4,000 4,000(| 4,000|[ 4,000
Between One and Two Years —ETF 4,000 4,000 4,000{| 4,000
Between Two and Five Years “ERFE 8,000 12,000|| 8,000(| 12,000
Over Five Years AFEME 3,687,287| (3,546,976 - -
3,703,287 3,566,976 16,000 20,000
Total Loans and Borrowings fEFAEEE 3,903,287 3,637,976 216,000 91,000
Less: Repayable within One Year and W —EZREEZ 204,000 75,000 204,000 75,000
Included in Current Liabilities mENAE

Amount included in Non-current Liabilites —&#&{EEZIERENEE 3,699,287 3,562,976 12,000 16,000

Notes MigE:

(a)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to
the bank’s consent.
BETHRECRITENERER—F - MEZRTEASE - BFEIIUED -

The secured loans of the University comprise a start-up loan from the Government to provide self-financing full
time accredited post-secondary programmes. The loan is interest-free, repayable in equal annual instalments
over 10 years starting from February 2014. The loan with an outstanding amount of $16 million (2018: $20
million) is secured by time deposits of the same amount.

AENEEPEREE-ERBAGENER - URAERENHZAHEARBEZRUELRE - HWIEERBREEN -
R—T-NF_ARRATETIRE - BE T 881 (CF—N\F : ZTER)NER - KEUERHENELRS
FRIERIE -

At 30 June 2019, the secured loans of the Group included a loan from the Government for the development of
the private teaching hospital of $3,687 million (2018: $3,547 million). The loan was secured by all the assets of
CUHK Medical Centre Limited wheresoever now or at any time hereafter belonging to CUHK Medical Centre
Limited for managing and operating the hospital and the benefit of all contracts and warranties relating to
them. The loan bears no interest for the first five years starting from the drawdown date of the first instalment.
Subsequently, it bears variable interest rate which is determined annually with reference to the Government’s
fiscal reserves with the Exchange Fund established under the Exchange Fund Ordinance. The first repayment
will commence from 19 March 2023.

RIZB—AERA=1TH  ABEENFEREREE - ERBEREHE=1T\BN\TFTtEERCE—N\E : =+EHE
MF-LEET)NER - MAEREILARABER - ZEMUTRIRERNEATEIIABELENLERATIEERER
LEBRNFIEEENRFIESHNRENERFERER - XENHEFE—PERRENARAEAFEERMFE - Hig -

RFEEERFE  BRSEBRTRMBREGREEERRE GMNEEEGRA) RIIMIMNEEEFEZERE - WREGERE
B HEMENR S _=FE=A+hBA -



25. DEFERRED INCOME

BT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAZE¥ETFTT5ITR)
The Group
REEE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
IETHAREDS and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
EE a2
DHEE ~ DGR ~ #HE
Research  Others RM=ETIE BUFHAE
iR Hih BRI B Hiih HaEE
2019
Balance - Beginning FHEEER 278,552 181,028 (18,832) 75,275 699,253 1,215,276
of Year
Subventions Received/ BUYI/FEI 252,722 81,306 1,560,730 204,574 100,618 2,199,950
Receivable =4:1)
Recognised as income ZERER (232,420)  (67,989) (14,031)  (155,719)  (59,020)  (529,179)
in the year HIUA
Transferred to BEIRLE (5,955) (700) (95,204) (11,017) (14,994)  (127,870)
Deferred Capital Funds BEEEE
Balance - End of Year fEARk8s 292,899 193645 1,432,663 113,113 725857 2,758,177
To be recognised: 1S HERDTE -
Within 1 year —FR 212,730 3,077 217,260 113,113 122,155 668,335
After 1 year —Fig 80,169 190,568 1,215,403 - 603,702 2,089,842
292,899 193,645 1,432,663 113,113 725,857 2,758,177
2018
Balance - Beginning FHEER 308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 532,033 1,239,276
of Year
Subventions Received/ S U/FEIX 224,338 69,508 173,696 110,330 241,274 819,146
Receivable =1:
Recognised as income ANEREZ (243,003) (79,166) (21,348) (84,354) (53,190) (481,061)
in the year HIUZA
Transferred to WERE (11.410)  (4513)  (317,657) (7641)  (20,864)  (362,085)
Deferred Capital Funds EEEE
Balance - End of Year fEikstss 278,552 181,028 (18,832) 75275 699,253 1,215,276
To be recognised: IS HERRTE ¢
Within 1 year —FR 238,938 - (18,832) 75,275 96,872 392,253
After 1 year —5i& 39,614 181,028 - - 602,381 823,023
278,552 181,028 (18,832) 75,275 699,253 1,215,276

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.
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25. DEFERRED INCOME IBIEWEE  (Continued #8)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)
The University
RE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
EERZMHEE and Government
AA&I*Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
EEwmnEm
oREE ~ NNEE - 2
Research  Others =T BURTHE
iR Hith BEESEM B Hith 1B
2019
Balance - Beginning FYEERR 278,552 181,028 (18,832) 75,275 105,335 621,358
of Year
Subventions Received/ E4/FEUR 252,722 81,306 1,560,730 204,574 100,304 2,199,636
Receivable =1V
Recognised as income SRR  (232420)  (67,989) (14,031)  (155,719)  (58,802)  (528,961)
in the year HIUZA
Transferred to EEIETE (5,955) (700) (95,204) (11,017) (14,994)  (127,870)
Deferred Capital Funds EEEE
Balance - End of Year Fi&4E8% 292,809 193,645 1,432,663 113,113 131,843 2,164,163
To be recognised: 1S HERRTE ¢
Within 1 year —FA 212,730 3,077 217,260 113,113 121,696 667,876
After 1 year — & 80,169 190,568 1,215,403 - 10,147 1,496,287
2018
Balance - Beginning EVEEE 308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 103,946 811,189
of Year
Subventions Received/ EUt/MEly 224,338 69,508 173,696 110,330 75025 652,897
Receivable =1
Recognised as income AZEAEER  (243003) (79,166)  (21348)  (84,354)  (52772)  (480,643)
in the year HIUTA
Transferred to mz=gm  (11410)  (4513)  (317657)  (7.641)  (20,864) (362,085)
Deferred Capital Funds EEE&
Balance - End of Year F4&458% 278,552 181,028 (18,832) 75,275 105,335 621,358
To be recognised: A HEERTE
Within 1 year —FR 238,938 - (18,832) 75,275 96,238 391,619
After 1 year — &% 39,614 181,028 ) ) 9,097 229,739
621,358

278,552 181,028 (18,832)

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.

75,275

105,335



26. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS EEEERS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB¥F7t5lR)

The Group and the University

REEENKE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
IEERERHIE and Government
AA&I* Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
EE e
o - N ~ #E
Research Others MHMETI]E - BFTHE
Sl Hith BB B Hiih ]

Balance - 1 July 2017 —E—-tHF
tHA—H#&8R 17,435 5,328 3,371,297 23,369 1,652 3,418,981

Transfer from Deferred EERIETEW S 11,410 4,513 317,657 7,641 20,864 362,085
Income

Transfer to the Statement of EEZEUWZEFR (12,081) (2,893) (146,451)  (9,591) (2,457) (173,473)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2018 =ZF—N\&EXA
and 1 July 2018 =E+AR=F-N
FEtA—H%R 16,764 6,948 3,542,503 21,419 19,959 3,607,593

Transfer from Deferred EHEIEEW S 5,955 700 95,204 11,017 14,994 127,870
Income

Transfer to the Statement of BEZEUEZFR (10,705) (3,264)  (148,614) (14,585) (6,948) (184,116)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2019 Z=Z—h#&
AB=TH&E 12,014 4,384 3,489,093 17,851 28,005 3,551,347

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.
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27.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the publicly funded nature of the University
and its nine Colleges and the composition of their
Council (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the University and its nine Colleges
have received from time to time donations from
University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the University’s
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
there are the following material related party
transactions:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. BABKSERSH

EABRENEERLDBLTER, FIAEREENS
EEBSNERAERE - KBRHERTEREDNK
8§ RBEXEREEAS - NHEFHNASRZHEAR
EMNASIEER - EEBEMED R ELHRABRES
WARIBE A B BRI AR RN -

ABHEIEEEEBETREENRERE AERIER A
HATEABRESNEFH@mBARMAMIERN - BiEL
REIIRBABN M BRAEIEENRBERET -

FRERMBREEMED RIRENR S NAEER - TN
BUTHREESRS

(BT TTHIR)

The University

RE
2019 2018
(i) Income received from () ®HBLIESHWEE
Subsidiaries
Service fees and rental charges IRIEENFAE 50,225 41,060
The Group and
the University
REEENAE
2019 2018
(ii) Key Management Personnel (i) FEEBASHIME
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits HEMHEMEHRESE 44,169 49,702
Post-employment benefits RIRAER 4,739 5,578
48,908 55,280
The Group and
the University
REEENKE
2019 2018
(i) Loans to Related Parties (iii) B FEABIS
Loans to key management under the AEHHMETTEETET
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 28) FRERAS(ME 28)
Beginning of the year REY 13,000 13,100
Net loans granted/(refunded) during the year REAZBER/ (B 5,400 (100)
End of the year HREL 18,400 13,000




28.

29.

30.

STAFF LOANS 28.

Staff loans, with interest at floating rates adjusted
by interest spreads and capped at other floating
rates, are available to eligible staff members of the
retirement scheme(s) operated by the University
who acts as the borrower from a bank. The bank
loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry of
loan agreement at the end of each calendar year.

COMMITMENTS Rz

HERESEM

ABUARTERARNREHERTEEBABRRE
RIBIAMHEE - FIRGREERAZRNZHNER > I
BEMZHNER LR - ZERFRSFFENER
REEIH HMAERBERTEE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAFEH#ETFTTHITR)

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2019 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:
REB-AEARA=1H » REMBERRIBBERIREINNOT :

The Group The University
REBEERE RE
2019 2018 2019 2018

Capital Expenditure Commitments ~ BZSE&iE
Contracted for B8
Authorised but not Contracted for EISEENRELN

OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES EREERS

2,421,823 3,746,367 496,845 278,470
1,910,070 811,225 1,910,070 577,975

4,331,893 4,557,592 2,406,915 856,445

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AEH#TFTTHIR)

At 30 June 2019, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
REZB-AFAA=TH @ REFTTEFNEERE - $RBUNSERERABEINTNOT :

The Group The University
REBER RE
2019 2018 2019 2018

Within one year —FR
Between one to five years —ERF

21,239 17,827 17,579 14,923
9,128 9,303 8,653 8,730

30,367 27,130 26,232 23,653
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31.

32.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RESHERIE
(BT THIR)

At 30 June 2019, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

REF—IFARAZ=TH - REFURRNEERSE - SREBINREEERBRHINAT ¢

The Group The University
REBER RE

2019 2018 2019 2018

Within one year —FRN 17,099 10,549 12,301 9,501

Between one to five years —EhF 18,887 6,088 15,812 5,476

35,986 16,637 28,113 14,977

Operating lease charges for the year REEZELIHEER 15,498 13,182 11,334 12,163
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 32. BXER

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws of
the Government which objects are to provide learning
and research in a wide range of undergraduate and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The Group defines capital as including various
general and restricted fund balances. The various
funds of the Group represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fee income,
donations and investment returns. These funds
are managed according to the relevant grant and
funding conditions, where applicable, and the
Group’s investment and financial management
guidelines and procedures are established in
accordance with the relevant statutes of the Group
with the view of meeting the objects of the Group
and safeguarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the Group’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements, except for the balance of
GDREF as disclosed in note 12.

AARBREEBFINTHREREE T RN —FREERE
BINE FHERIE - STEREARRERMRRRER
B B2 BR - XENEMBENBE IS - K
BHENEERHBAMHEIE « 28 - BENE 8
BEBEEENEARREORSEER -

ABERNEFEROE—RESNERAEE - KEX
ENSEREEHETREAWERNMHEIE - W8 18
RETRIE Mg BT AERY - ZEEEEIREERELER
HOMBNE RISRAIRIERE - MiRE « MIFEEESIN
B2 iREARRIEERNRE T E N REN SR
HB RN MR DEENIHELEES -

FREEE 1 2ch IR — MR N R ERE RS - KBE
RRNEAESEREREZTFER - WRHNE - MAL
FZHERE[MIMREMAERER



33.

33.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and equity
price risks arising in the normal course of the
Group’s and the University’s operations. These risks
are managed by the Group’s and the University’s
financial management policies and practices as
described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group and
the University. The Group’s and the University’s
exposure to credit risk is mainly attributable
to the deposits they maintained with various
financial institutions and investment securities
held by fund managers, including debt securities
carried at amoritsed costs and trading securities.
The Group and the University established their
guidelines to minimise the credit risk associated
with these financial assets and considered the
ECL is immaterial. Debt securities carried at
amortised costs are all at “investment grade”
credit ratings as assigned by international credit
rating agencies at the time of purchase. Trading
securities are all of good investment grade
and are held through appointed professional
investment managers who would manage the
portfolios through comprehensive monitoring
systems. The Group and the University have
no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

33. THERERRAREE

AERENASNEM T RBERTER  BFEs
BRAES - EUfSREENIRE - REGBRENSE
158 - ZHREED - ST RMEHNERERE
EEEE - REBEEERE - FIRER - SMERRIRKRE
BrEER - AEZENAZRATIINERMEEBERL
iR EmBE -

33.1IRITHEM « BHES - RAES  EMEREINE

B IRESBREARBERE

() EERRE
EERBRERSHFHESHEEERNENAEER
BAABEZUEERNER - KEEERAEMR
HHNEERBRFEREEFEHNR T E T ERIBNZ
MREEREREBFRFNESINE - SIERIEBHEK
FEIEERESFNUBEERES - ABEELAED
HIFTAERAIE SIS SR EEMENEEEG R ER
B - IR RTEHEEBELEFERX - R#HEMAE
EESTERE AN AR E S TAIERTER
TYREMRR ) ; FREUEERSNBRIFRERA
W ERENER R ERERE M EENEERR
EE - REBERNAENEERITEEEZ
FLERIE  MESHRRINREE -

BREBRITEFRNEEREE - KBRELASHAL
BERRBHRRIEEREREFEEFRNEBTHE
() - ARSERETFEESPHEE - SFE
HITFRRABERIN AR -

ERERSLEMBERAERENEERR T2 E
W REBRERASHTERWMERATCELRE
$)i3 4

—

i BOURBREREEEEMEERZHIEEE
LERRNTREE )
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(i) Liquidity risk

The Group and the University have sufficient
funds to finance its ongoing working capital
requirements. Measures are implemented to
regularly monitor the current and expected
liquidity requirements of the Group and the
University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest
settlement dates of the Group’s and the
University’s financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on current rates at the end of
the reporting period):

(@) The Group  REEES

(i) FRENEEERS

ARERELABEEHNREE AR FHEZER
& IRERIIEHERFEENRKADNEENT
2 UREGEHAEARDESNOURERERNIEE
5 LMETRRZE -

UF—BRIEABRERNABEEACRERER
XTEE - BREHZRITRRERE(EENEH
FIRGTENF B2 - WMEHAFIRIAZEFIRTEF
8 AiRREE AMEEFIRAS)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LABB¥F7T5lIT)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BENZRIFRREREE
2019
Carrying  Within 1 Year More than More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years
—FR BiE—F BiR—F hEF
REEE SmER @R BEER ME @@
Accounts Payable and  pE({}BRER R FEST 1,180,307 978,068 202,239 - 1,180,307
Accruals =H
Provision for Employee (&S 1&F% i 911,316 670,712 201,796 37,451 1,357 911,316
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  f&zk 3,903,287 204,000 4,000 4,923,421 5,131,421
5,994,910 1,852,780 408,035 4,960,872 1,357 7,223,044
2018
Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years
—FRA BE—F BT hF
REEH gmmk  E-EA GREA NE  @E
Accounts Payable and F&{s EE S R FES 1,374,215 1,291,485 - 82,730 - 1,374,215
Accruals F=4z:]
Provision for Employee {ESiEH% (% 780,185 532,585 196,177 39,027 12,396 780,185
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings f&2¢ 3,637,976 75,000 4,000 4,927,421 - 5,006,421
5,792,376 1,899,070 200,177 5,049,178 12,396

7,160,821



(b) The University KRE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZB¥F7T5lR)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BREHNZKRITRRETHE
2019

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years

—F8 ®BE-F ©BBE-E §fF
REE®  gpmr  E-ER BREA ME ]

Accounts Payable and FE{TERFR M FER 813,659 813,659 - - - 813,659
Accruals =H

Provision for Employee {&E &%l % 899,695 665,031 197,858 35,449 1,357 899,695
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings &% 216,000 204,000 4,000 8,000 - 216,000

1,929,354 1,682,690 201,858 43,449 1,357 1,929,354

2018

Carrying ~ Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and  amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—&ER BE—F Be-E AOF
REEHE  gwmsk  E-&A EREA MNE  @Em

Accounts Payable and FE{TEREZR R FESTESMA 1,321,964 1,321,964 - - - 1,321,964
Accruals

Provision for Emp|oyee Egﬁ*uﬁﬁ 773,197 528,237 194,539 38,025 12,396 773,197
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings B 91,000 75,000 4,000 12,000 - 91,000

2,186,161 1,925,201 198,539 50,025 12,396 2,186,161

(iii) Interest rate risk (i) FIZRES
As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group HREEFN SWENEREE  KBEREMAES
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits RAFEEEMRITERNERES -
and debt securities.
The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities at RERRNEEAIIFEEANFESTHERE - K
the end of the reporting period are not significant. B e 3m HA S S | SR A A ER SR BN S S i A B R
The Group does not expect short-term fluctuations s B B R E A S o

in market interest rates will have significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations.
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During the year under review, the Group and the
University have no interest rate risk from interest-
bearing loan since the only interest-bearing
loan taken out by the University is for the sole
purpose of operating a staff loan scheme and any
fluctuations in market interest rates only affect
the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest
rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

(@) The Group pAN-E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RAMFE - KEEERAB)RERTEEMRM
ZENREINTE - ARELTFEEREARET
fEERTE - MEENAREABREHERNETHRIE -

MTF—EBRIEEHIRASMASHEECBREFX

(BT TTHIR)

2019

2018

Effective Carrying
Interest Amount
Rate
% p.a.
BERFANX RESH

Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount
Rate
% p.a.
BERFANEX RESHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EEEBNREFR

(b) The University RE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.60 18,460,167

(ABEEFTTHIR)

2019

220 17,789,481

2018

Effective Carrying
Interest Amount
Rate
% p.a.
BERFANEX KREESHE

Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount
Rate
% p.a.
BERFANX RESHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits ~EEZBERTER

2,63 15,513,645

2.27 13,230,463



As at 30 June 2019, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $75,803,000 (2018:
$71,013,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to interest rate
risk for investments in short-term time deposits
in existence at that date. The Group may be
exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its
holding in the investment portfolios which
hold debt instruments. Increase/decrease in
investment income from these investment
portfolios arising from interest rate change
however is not considered in the sensitivity
analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (“USD”) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 21% of the Group’s and 22% of the
University’s financial assets (including cash,
bank deposits with banks, debt, equity securities
and investments) are denominated in USD,
but it is considered that risk of movement in
exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the end of the reporting
period:

REFB-AFANA=TH - BRAFEMITEENE
BREAE - [AREBM/EP AT - KBEE
REANBBRSIEN/BEIHOETFAENTE=FT
CEEF-—NF: tF—BFB=Fn)-

LR ST ERR R RNEENEE R
£ - WERARABEEEENZ HMRITEMERATER
HIFIRERE - ARESEERAERMUENEY - R
AREIMPZFIREESEE IRER@INE - Al
BEBERU ENSRES R o EIN/E>E+E
FRIEEEENEE MEAE H LA RNSE D
REEBNHIFTAL -

(iv) 5 EEm B

REERNABNINEER LB - SEMEEEN
BREEEARE  MEBMARUEBBRE &%
MEEMSEMIMGEENSELFA -

AREERRABREUXTAEEEENERNEE
AW BHEREERBENTOZ—+—MEILZ
T=(BERE - FRRRTER - R - RERRKR
&) - BEEENTHERAERETERBEST
B RRERFIET - KEEEERRETHERE
REZEBAEKX -

RF-—BRIMEEAUSEEBREEEBNE
MEECEH(ERRE « FRRBTHER - BB
RIRHE) -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a) The Group REER

(BT TTHIR)

2019 2018
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
Bl AR ERE &8 HARERE
Currency & ENEoL ENESL
HKD i 16,486,948 67 15,852,083 67
usD =TT 6,158,628 25 6,291,045 26
RMB AR# 1,356,016 6 1,344,788 6
Euro EX7T 117,224 - 137,359 1
Pounds Sterling Y 75,857 - 28,743 -
Others Hith 511,867 2 121,507 -
24,706,540 100 23,775,525 100
(b) The University RE
2019 2018
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
&8 AR ERE =8 HAEERE
Currency 5#& EMBALL ENBSLL
HKD A 13,418,811 64 11,153,466 60
usD =TT 5,686,275 27 5,851,604 31
RMB AR 1,348,413 6 1,321,166 7
Euro EX7T 117,224 1 137,359 1
Pounds Sterling BagE 67,903 - 20,457 -
Others Hith 506,675 2 117,088 1
21,145,301 100 18,601,140 100

About 6% of the Group’s and 6% of the University’s
financial assets are denominated in RMB (2018:
6% and 7% respectively). As the percentages of
financial assets denominated in currencies other
than HKD, RMB and USD to the total financial
assets of the Group and the University were 2%
and 3% respectively as at 30 June 2019 (2018:
1% and 2% respectively), exposure to foreign
currency risk is not significant.

AREBENABRBEUARBREEEBNERE
ERRNANGEREERENE I ZAREDZN(
TE-N\EF: FREERZARERLZTE) - REF
—hEXRA=1H - KBERERABUEE - AR
BRETMIIMEBRGEECEMEEGRERNEE
ERRNRBEIZ=RBERZ=(ZF—N\F : 25l
REEPZ—REALZT)  HABERNABTHE
EZHYMERPRIL T EEE -



(v) Equity price risk

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 17). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices
of the respective listed equity securities and
unit trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s and
the University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $122,394,000
(2018: $122,901,000) and $103,346,000 (2018:
$92,534,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and
unit trusts by trading market at the end of the
reporting period:

(v)

FEBERR

ABEELASBFEENERERRREERE D
ERUEERES THRAESREMERES (M
i17) - REEREBHSRIREEREBFIE
FTEBRRTE R EEBRERRE - MBIREEE
HIET IR E RIS RS RIREA B FAHIRTRIRE N EE
PECIES| - ABRERABTEERTEMBE LI
EEBMERRS TGS - KBRERABEM
FRAENRFAESREMERESAHRIERESEE
e

RHEHEH - ELTMREESREMERESNER
EF/THARER - HHEME—SERRIES T
SMRBRT  AEERELRASBREANER - g&F
IhRFRESREMERESNATEERZS o
REM/ RS —B=F_B=tThEBENFT (CFT—
NgE: —GB=F2BEATEBS—TFTR)A—FEE=
B=1TOEARTRT (CTF-NE: A FTERT=
BIFT) -

RF—EBRIEEEARBRENABIREERR
S LHRENEMETEENEE :

(a) The Group REBEERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAZ¥ETFTT5IT)
2019 2018
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities Unit Trusts Total
Market ™% BAES BAEFRER - KAESs BEfEHEE 88
United States < 987,324 110,548 1,097,872 828,837 137,092 965,929
Hong Kong aE 350,393 597,088 947,481 580,015 596,595 1,176,610
Europe &R 275,893 275,893 239,296 - 239,296
Asia Pacific OKE > 35,195 40,318 20,490 5,581 26,071
excluding EHHEERI
Hong Kong
Others Hith 86,320 86,320 50,118 - 50,118
1,735,125 712,759 2,447,884 1,718,756 739,268 2,458,024
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(b) The University FE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB#F7T5lIR)

2019 2018
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total
Market iz BA:ES BflEEEE B BAES BEffEREE  EE5
United States =E 966,810 107,660 1,074,470 808,233 137,092 945,325
Hong Kong aE 86,974 523,423 610,397 88,089 522,403 610,492
Europe BRI 263,201 - 263,201 227,107 - 227,107
Asia Pacific DKE > 35,195 - 35,195 17,628 - 17,628
excluding EHHEERI
Hong Kong
Others Hith 83,654 - 83,654 50,118 - 50,118
1,435,834 631,083 2,066,917 1,191,175 659,495 1,850,670

33.2 Limited partnerships and alternative 33.2 [RESBRERSEEE
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investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk, where applicable, of
the underlying assets through diversifications of
their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
would not have significant impact on the Group’s
daily operations.

REGBRENSERENEEERERIRERD IR
BEHNKE - ABERENABHBEEESGRHE
THIREZEERINIRLUMERENSE - BEE
MEBRENEEEEEREEREETRMIARBEE
LEESER - MMBEBRIETMIEZEEEI(WNS
BUIRE - EREMME - ST BEREIRESR
EAREEEMEBANGE  RBEE - AR - SMER
REEBNER - EMBERENESAIEREBHFAR
BREEMEESRUNEETHHEE - TEEKE
SMRIBRRABHRRE - LLFRERIEHRRELT T
SREASEENHREEE-



(i)

The following table shows the amounts of asset () M TF—EBRINEREEARSSBIZEEESERHN
allocation in the limited partnerships at the end £

of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REBERENAE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#E#F7T5IR)

2019 2018

&5 % =8 %
Hedge Funds HhEE 199,848 10 245,750 13
Cash RE 48,561 2 107,628 6
Private Equity FAERRHE 458,607 23 428,720 22
Real Estate EitE 239,917 12 242,816 13
Fixed Income EEWA 183,039 9 132,741 7
International Equity IRERBGE 694,800 35 622,447 32
Natural Resources RAREIR 152,161 8 119,508 6
Others Hith 24,343 1 18,281 1
Total b 2,001,276 100 1,917,891 100

The following table shows the amounts of (i) WF—EBRIIERESEHBEREEENRNE
asset allocation in alternative investments 3

at the end of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REEENAE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)

2019 2018

8 % &8 %
Hedge Funds HihEE 392,165 66 296,359 64
Real Estate REiiE 73,789 12 71,027 16
Private Equity ThES R 132,195 22 93,649 20

Total e 598,149 100 461,035 100
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33.3 Fair value measurement

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2019 and 2018.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes are
based on the valuations provided by the counterparty
financial institutions.

Fair values for debt securities carried at amortised
costs are based on their trading values in the
secondary market on or nearest to the end of the
reporting period.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by the General Partner of the partnership
and the administrators or investment managers
of the alternative investments. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

HKFRS13, Fair value measurement defined the
category of three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in valuation technique
as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
siginificant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the end of the
respective reporting periods on a recurring basis,
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised:

33.3 MABEIERE

FREEMIRER"F-NEA=F—\FA=1THN
REEHEAREBEREADA -

LHRE - EEESREMERESNOAABERRE
EMREEHNTHSEABMRE

FFEMMREHNREC AR EER R TSRS
RHHEERE -

REERATERBRSNAABERRBEE DN
ITEAEE —FRSHBNERERRE -

HRREGBRELASERELBELRMEER ' K
SEEBREHIRNALERERTEGRARSER
BRI HESEENT)MEHMERIRER - 798
ZiGETEEELRTRETEENEEEFEER -

BEERMFRELAE 135 " AnEENE ) RE=(E
LAREEER - AARBEFRELAEEFERED
HAEDERUATEERITPHENREEENER MY
TEEE :

- B-ERMGE  REAFE-SFRBAEEHEREE
BB AR E B REEREGLSRARERERE) Kt
EnnEE -

- BUERMNE  FREZSEEEAGEIKRESE—F
A TTH R A B LISESE A T RRAERKE
ERNREE - AUBHEBABRENRBSHEN
AAE °

- BEFRMGE  RAEATUEERAGRERD
REE -

AT —EBRIHEHE B ZHELREEEMEN
R TREARBEESFREUT O



(a) Financial assets carried at fair value

BORBEETIRNERMEE

The Group FEAERpE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FITHIR)
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EiR— FR= EFR= k]
Trading Securities oEEE 3,317,615 146,555 - 3,464,170
Non-trading Listed Securities JEEE MRS 220,344 - - 220,344
Unlisted Equity Securities JE LA - - 7,930 7,930
Limited Partnership Investments RESBIRE - - 2,001,276 2,001,276
Alternative Investments SERKE - - 598,149 598,149
Total azE 3,537,959 146,555 2,607,355 6,291,869
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EH— E 31 Fih= ki)
Trading Securities EBRES 3,163,723 93,232 - 3,256,955
Available-for-sale Securities o EEE 264,015 - - 264,015
Limited Partnership Investments PREGBIZE - - 1,917,891 1,917,891
Alternative Investments SERKRE - - 461,035 461,035
Total Febr] 3,427,738 93,232 2,378,926 5,899,896
The University K2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fih— FR= FR= k]
Trading Securities AEEES 2,776,626 137,666 - 2,914,292
Unlisted Equity Securities JE ETRRASEE - - 7,930 7,930
Limited Partnership Investments RESBIZE - - 2,001,276 2,001,276
Alternative Investments SiEigE - - 598,149 598,149
Total 1BzE 2,776,626 137,666 2,607,355 5,621,647
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
e £ Fh= b
Trading Securities o EERES 2,817,873 93,232 - 2,911,105
Limited Partnership Investments RESBIXE - - 1,917,891 1,917,891
Alternative Investments SEERE - - 461,035 461,035
Total FEE]

2,817,873

93,232

2,378,926

5,290,031

1M1
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During the year there were no transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the fund managers and
have been translated using the foreign currency at
the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from
the beginning balances to the ending balances
as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and
the University:

The Group and the University — E3EEETG K ER

TFERKBEEGESFR—HEEFR-ZHEZE -

BREZHESNAREENSEESEEFRMER
HHEBMET - LEARSHRCERRE

UTF—BRITABEERAZRERLABESTR
=HEMT B FHEFEEREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA T TT51R)
2019
Opening balance as at 30 June 2018 FH4EER 2,378,926
Implication on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRFEMNEEMEER 7,321
EORMFE
Adjusted opening balance as at 1 July 2018 FHRRRAEER 2,386,247
Total gain included in the Statements of EalEEEEZRY 62,421
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure RIS &S
Additions b P 254,413
Disposals HE (95,726)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2019 IR GERR 2,607,355
2018
Opening balance as at 1 July 2017 FNEEER 2,064,842
Total gain included in the Statements of EEEEEEKZRT 222,006
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure HIAE S 25
Additions b 158,205
Disposals HeE (66,127)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2018 FHEEES 2,378,926

All gains and losses for the fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for both the Group and
the University for the years ended 30 June 2019
and 30 June 2018.

REERERABHENEFR=SMTR &#="%—
NEXRB=+THEAZF-—N\EXA=THNERCH
EEURER -



The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the unlisted equity securities and the
investments in the three limited partnerships and the
alternative investments arranged by an investment
consultant in the United States as detailed in Note
33.2.

The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are not traded in active markets. In the
absence of an active market, an investment’s fair
value is estimated on the basis of an analysis of the
investee’s financial position and results, risk profile,
prospects and other factors, as well as by reference
to market valuations for similar entities quoted in
an active market. Given the bespoke nature of the
analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical
to quote a range of key unobservable inputs.

The fair value of unlisted equity investments in Level
3 is determined based on the attributable net asset
values. The significant unobservable input includes
the attributable net asset value and the fair value
increases with the increase in the attributable net
asset values.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. The US-based firm of investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds
of hedge funds, private equity funds, real
estate funds and natural resources funds had
increased/decreased by 5% and the fair values
of assets under “Fixed Income” and “Others”
of the Level 3 financial assets had increased/
decreased by 5% and

AREERRABNER= TN EESIEMFE33.212 %
MIIE LR AN RS R =ERE S IEE RH—EXER
ERR NSRS EIRE -

AREEERABNER = ENEENLIFNIERET
IBEITEE - MRIRRENRRIGERENTS - O
ENHERKERERSRNABRRTERE - BERR
o ARMEMERZ2Y - TESRRERHS
HEREUERHERGE - BRABSERECDTE
BAE - S — R ERAFA TRRRRL A IECIT -

FLERRAREEE=MN LA EBERBEGFEER
EE - EXATURRBABBEERGEEFERLA
BERERIGEEFEBMMmEM

HAXNBRENASEBRER = EHEENLEE
RERREGBIEENEEBARSEREIREEE
FHESERNTEHNESRERRAERSEN
% - BEREGBARABRENREEEERATEN
HEEEER - HEELTENLREE - KBBERR
KB EBEAASINAET - WHSEZERES
EREWHYES  AEREES  BiEES - XA
ERES) RN I ETH ISR R E —EHHE
AR - ARFEINOREENBENHRMEE
HIRIRA T ERIRAGRAVOIE - ZEFHEBHELTA
REARBEENABAFINER=EREENLAE
EFEEMNEEMRHREDITHELE -

X aX

() ERHBEZERAMVERARE PES « REHBRE
EE  FHEERESRRAGREESNERLA/T
BKEAARESFR=ZEMEET “EBWA"
M “EHfth” BRINEENLABELA/THRES
A
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(i) the prices of international markets equities had
been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level
3 financial assets, and hence the Group’s and
the University’s surplus would have increased/
decreased by approximately $130,368,000 (2018:
$118,946,000).

(b) Financial assets carried at other than fair value

K
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The Group

(i) ZE/RE/FHETSRENER LA/ THEILZ
>

MEMITEHERFRIFFE - KERERABNER
SEMEENARBEENABBRERABRFEAN
BEBREEM/BIHN—B=FF=+BN\FTR(=T
—N&E : —f—FN\EATEEARTFT)

FURAREETIRNEMEE

(BT TTIIR)

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2019
RS- hEAA=1H
BRAREERSE

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount at at30 June Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 amountat at 30 June
30 June 2019 2019 30 June 2018 2018
REZ—h&F RZT-IE REZB—N\E RTB—N\E
AB=+H RA=t1H AB=+H AXB=+H
HIEREE 8 HRREE SH— SH- FR= WREASE MAREE
Debt securities RIESH R ASET 3,131,195 3,167,381 1,601,857 1,565,524 - 3,686,975 3,532,784
measured at SEBESE
amortised cost
The University K2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT TTHIR)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2019
R=Z—h%EB=1+H
Carrying Fair value EARBEERE Carrying Fair value
amount at at30June |evel1 Level2 Level3 amountat at 30 June
30 June 2019 2019 30 June 2018 2018
REZ—h&F RZZT-IE REZB—N\E RTB—NE
AB=t+H RA=t1H AB=+H XB=+H8
HEREEER HAREE SH— FH- EH= WERESE MAREHE
Debt securities RIS AT 3,131,195 3,167,381 1,601,857 1,565,524 - 3,400,503 3,346,312
measured at =B8RS

amortised cost

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the banks and have
been translated using the foreign currency at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.
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33.4 Interests in investment funds

The University holds interests in investment funds
investing in the following asset classes. The purpose
of these investment funds is to generate investment
income for the University. These investment funds
are managed by professional fund managers.

The table below sets out the interests held by the
University in these investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held.

Investment fund classes

33.4 REB T AMELE

ABEBIRER T EERRNREESIER - BER
EESNENERABRIUIENA - BEREESER
HERESEERER -

AT —BRIIHABHRIREES i - IREEN
RAMBAEEREMEENREE -

2019
Number of  Carrying amount
investee  included in financial
investment assets at fair value
funds through profit or loss

HEEZIER HIEEE CIEEHENNUAR
HE EBEJRNEREE
HEREEEE
HKD’million
BERET
Equities = 10 1,129
Fixed Income EBWA 3 98
Hedge Funds HipEE 12 416
Real Estate EithE 6 82
Private Equity B 1 101
Limited Partnership RESBRE 9 2,001
Total FEL 3827
2018
Number of  Carrying amount
investee  included in financial
investment assets at fair value
Investment fund classes funds through profit or loss
HEEEER HIREES CrRtEEENULR
= BEEJRNEREE
MEREEEE
HKD’million
BEET
Equities BE 1 1.230
Fixed Income ESWA 3 93
Hedge Funds HihESE 7 296
Real Estate EithE 6 71
Private Equity TSR 10 94
Limited Partnership [RESBIRE 9 1,918
Total FEEL] 3,702
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34.

The carrying amount of such investments included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is the same as the fund price per unit multiplied by
number of units held, or the total net assets if the unit
information is not available. The carrying amount
constitutes less than 1% of the appropriate total
net assets of the underlying investment funds as at
30 June 2019 (2018: less than 1%). Such carrying
amount represents the maximum exposure of the
University at the end of the reporting period.

All the above investment funds are passive
investments only. The University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these
funds.

The University can redeem the above investment
funds within one business day to one year,
depending on the requirement of each investment
fund.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University review the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.
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35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

oty /
(3

—

35. #E-—S-hFAA=1THLFECEGEMRRE

HEEET ~ TR RREIREENTE

BEAUMBRR]ELA - SRS LERHSIEE
7]~ FETERINERRE - ZFER] - T ERIRERER
B@EZFT-AFAAZTHIEFENAREN - MAD
RESHBFRRDPER - ZBEUATHASEARKER
ISR -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 16, Leases
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and

joint ventures

1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16 which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed
to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially applied
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 30 June 2020. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in the financial statements.
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HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2.8, currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The
Group enters into some leases as the lessor and
others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease, the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for fixed assets which are
currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the Group’s and University’s Statements of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over the
period of the lease.
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HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS
16, the Group plans to use the practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into
on or after the date of initial application. In addition,
the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for
not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of funds
at 1 July 2019 and will not restate comparative
information. As disclosed in note 31, at 30 June 2019
the Group’s and the University’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to $36.0 million and $28.1 million respectively,
which are payable either within 1 year or between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date. Other than the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets,
the Group expects that the transition adjustments to
be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will
not be material. However, the expected changes in
accounting policies as described above could have
a material impact on the Group’s and the University’s
financial statements from 2020 onwards.
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